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NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that the 37th (Thirty-Seventh  7th  of the 
Members of Creative Castings Limited Monday, the 26th day of September, 2022 at 11:00 
A.M. at its registered office situated at 102, GIDC Phase-II, Rajkot Road, Dolatpara, Junagadh-362003, Gujarat, to transact the 
following businesses: 

ORDINARY BUSINESSES: 

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended at March 31, 2022, 
 

2. To declare a final dividend of Rs. 10.00 (Rupees Ten only) (i.e. 100%) per equity share, for the financial year ended on March 
31, 2022; 

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Hiren Narottam Vadgama (DIN: 00145992), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, 
offers himself for reappointment; 

Registered Office:                                                                                                           By order of the Board 
Creative Castings Limited For, Creative Castings Limited 
CIN : L27100GJ1985PLC008286  
102, GIDC-II, Rajkot Road Sd/- 
Dolatpara, Junagadh.  
Phone: 0285-2660040/2660224 Dhirubhai H. Dand 
Fax:+91-285-2661348                                                                                     Chairman 
e-Mail : info@creative-cast.com; DIN: 00284065 
Web: www.creative-cast.com Dolatpara, August 13, 2022 

Notes: 
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is also entitled to appoint proxy to attend and vote instead of 

himself / herself and proxy need not be a member of the company. Pursuant to Section 105 of Companies Act, 2013 a 
person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more than ten percent of 
the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than ten percent of the total share capital 
of the company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for any 
other person or shareholder/member. 

 
2. Proxies, in order to be effective, the proxy form should be duly stamped, completed, signed and must be sent to the Company 

so as to receive at its Registered Office not later than 48 hours before the commencement of the 37thAGM. A Proxy form is 
annexed to this report. 

3. Corporate members intending to send their representatives to attend the meeting are requested to send to the company a 
certified copy of the board resolution authorizing their representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting. 

 
4. The members / proxies are requested to bring duly filled attendance slip enclosed herewith. 

5. In line with the MCA  General Circular no. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 read with General Circular no.  02/2021 dated 
January 13, 2021 & General Circular no. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022 and SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020 read with 
Circular dated January 15, 2021 & Circular dated May 13, 2022, the Notice of the 37th AGM alongwith the Annual 
Report for the Financial Year 2021-22 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members whose email 
addresses are registered with the Company/R&T Agent/ Depositories. A copy of the Notice of this AGM alongwith the 
Annual Report is available on the website of the Company at www.creative-cast.com and website of the Stock Exchange 
where the equity shares of the Company are listed, i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com. For any communication, the 

 email id: info@creative-cast.com. The Company will not be 
dispatching physical copies of the Annual Reports for the Financial Year 2021-22 including Notice of AGM to any 
Members. 

 
6. Trading / Transfer in the shares of the Company shall compulsorily be done in dematerialized form only w.e.f. 1st April, 

2019. Pursuant to SEBI Press Release No. 12/2019 dated 27th March, 2019, SEBI had clarified that the investors may continue to 
hold such shares in physical form even after the 1st April, 2019 subject to condition that investor who is desirous of transferring 
shares (which are held in physical form) after April 01, 2019 can do so only after the shares are dematerialized. Shareholders are 
therefore advised to dematerialize your physical shareholding at the earliest, if not yet done. A procedure for dematerialization of 
shares of the Company is hosted on its website i.e. www.creative-cast.com.Dematerialization would facilitate paperless trading 
through state-of-the-art technology, quick transfer of corporate benefits to members and avoid inherent problems of bad deliveries, 
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loss in postal transit, theft and mutilation of share certificate and will not attract any stamp duty. It also substantially reduces the risk 
of fraud. Hence, we request all those members who have still not dematerialized their shares to get their shares dematerialized at the 
earliest. 

7. Members holding shares in single name and physical form are advised to make nomination in respect of their shareholding in 
the Company. 
form by quoting their folio number. 

8. Members holding the shares in physical mode are requested to notify immediately for change of their address and bank 
particulars to the company or its share transfer agent and in case their shares are held in dematerialized form then information 
should be passed on directly to their respective depository participants and not to the company/Share transfer agents without 
any delay. Members are further requested to complete necessary formalities with regard to their Bank accounts attached to 
their Demat account for enabling the Company to make timely credit of dividend in respective bank account especially in view 
of prevailing situation of COVID-19. 

9. In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Listing Regulations , the Company is providing the facility of remote e-
voting to its members in respect of the business to be transacted at the 37th AGM. For this purpose, the Company has availed 
the services of Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). 

10. To increase the efficiency of the e-voting process, SEBI, vide Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated 
December 9, 2020, intended to enable e-voting to all the demat account holders by way of a single login credential, through 
their demat accounts/ websites of Depositories/Depository Participants. Demat account holders should be permitted to cast 
their votes without having to register again with the e-voting service providers, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of participating in e-voting process. As required by this Circular, 
Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat accounts maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Hence, members are advised to update their mobile numbers and email Ids in their 
respective demat accounts to access e-voting facility. 

11. The voting period begins on September 22, 2022, 09.00 AM and ends on September 25, 2022 at 05.00 PM. During this period 
members of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) 
of September 19, 2022 may cast their vote electronically. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for voting 
thereafter. 

The information with respect to Voting process and other instructions regarding remote e-voting are detailed in Note 
no. 33. 

The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to the paid-up value of their shares in the equity capital of the 
Company as on the cut-off date i.e. Monday, September 19, 2022. 

12. The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting may also attend the 37th AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their 
vote again. The member who votes through both, i.e, remote e-voting and also at 37th AGM, the votes casted through remote e-
voting shall prevail and counted for the purpose of declaration of result. 

13. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners maintained by the 
depositories as on the cut-off date i.e. September 19, 2022 only shall be entitled to avail the remote e-voting facility as well as 
voting in the 37th AGM. 

14. CS Mayur Buha, proprietor of M. Buha & Co., Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No. F9000) has been appointed as 
the scrutinizer to scrutinize the e-voting & poll process in a fair and transparent manner. 

15. The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the 37th AGM, count the votes cast at the meeting and there 
after unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least 2 witnesses not in employment of the Company. 

 later 
than 48 hours from the conclusion of the 37thAGM to the Chairman of the Company. The Chairman, or any other person 
authorized by the Chairman, shall declare the result of the voting forthwith. The result declared along with the consolidated 

www.creative-cast.com and on the website of Central 
Depository Services Limited (CDSL) immediately after the result is declared by the Chairman and the same shall be 
simultaneously placed on the website of BSE Limited i.e. www.bseindia.com. 

16. The resolution(s) shall be deemed to be passed on the date of 37th AGM, subject to the receipt of sufficient votes. 
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Notes on Dividend

17. Members may note that the Board of Directors, in its meeting held on August 13, 2022 has recommended a final dividend of ` 
10.00 per equity share (i.e. 100%). The record date for the purpose of final dividend for financial year 2021-22 will be 
September 19, 2022. The final dividend, once approved by the members in the ensuing 37th AGM will be paid within 30 days 
of the conclusion of the 37th AGM electronically through various online transfer modes to those members who have updated 
their bank account details. For members who have not updated their bank account details, dividend warrants / demand drafts / 
cheques will be sent out to their registered addresses in due course. To avoid delay in receiving the dividend, members are 
requested to 
Registrar and Transfer Agent ( R&T A ) (where shares are held in physical mode) to receive the dividend directly into 
their bank account on the payout date. 

 
18. 

dividends paid or distributed by a company after April 01, 2020 shall be taxable in the hands of members. The Company shall 
therefore be required to deduct tax at source (TDS) at the time of making the payment of final dividend. In order to enable us 
to determine the appropriate TDS rate (Withholding tax rate) as applicable, members are requested to submit the following 
documents in accordance with the provisions of the IT Act. 

 
For resident shareholders m , taxes shall be deducted at source under Section 194 of the IT Act as follows- 

Particulars 
Withholding 
tax rate 

Documents required (if any) 

Members having valid PAN 10%* No document required (if no exemption is sought) 
Members not having PAN / valid PAN 20% No document required (if no exemption is sought) 
Availability of lower/nil tax deduction 
certificate issued by Income Tax Department 
u/s 197 of Income Tax Act, 1961 

Rate specified 
in the certificate 

Lower tax deduction certificate obtained from 
Income Tax Authority 

* As per the Finance Act, 2021, Section 206AB has been inserted effective July 1, 2021, wherein higher rate of tax (twice the  
 

the provisions of the aforesaid Section. 

However, no tax shall be deducted on the dividend payable to a resident individual if the total dividend to be received 
by them during Financial Year 2022-23 does not exceed Rs. 5,000 and also in cases where members provide Form 15G 
(applicable to any person other than a Company or a Firm)/ Form 15H (applicable to individuals aged 60 years or 
more) subject to conditions specified in the IT Act. Resident members may also submit any other document as prescribed 
under the IT Act to claim a lower / Nil withholding tax. Registered members may also submit any other document as 
prescribed under the IT Act to claim a lower / Nil withholding tax. PAN is mandatory for members providing Form 15G / 15H 
or any other document as mentioned above. 

For non-resident members, taxes are required to be withheld in accordance with the provisions of Section 195 and other 
applicable sections of the IT Act, at the rates in force. The withholding tax shall be at the rate of 20% (plus applicable 
surcharge and cess) or as notified by the Government of India on the amount of dividend payable. However, as per Section 90 
of the IT Act, non-resident members have the option to be governed by the provisions of the Double Tax Avoidance 
Agreement (DTAA) between India and the country of tax residence of the member, if they are more beneficial to them. For 
this purpose, i.e. to avail the benefits under the DTAA, non-resident members will have to provide the following: 
 Copy of the PAN card allotted by the Indian Income Tax authorities duly attested by the member or details as prescribed 

under rule 37BC of the Income-tax Rules, 1962. 
 Copy of Tax Residency Certificate (TRC) for the FY 2022-23 obtained from the revenue authorities of the country of tax 

residence, duly attested by the member. 
 Self-declaration in Form 10F. 
 Self-declaration by the members of having no permanent establishment in India in accordance with the applicable tax 

treaty. 
 Self-declaration of beneficial ownership by the non-resident members. 
 Any other documents as prescribed under the IT Act for lower withholding of taxes if applicable, duly attested by the 

member. 
 
In case of Foreign Institutional Investors / Foreign Portfolio Investors, tax will be deducted under Section 196D of the IT 
Act at the rate of 20%** (plus applicable surcharge and cess) or the rate provided in relevant DTAA, read with MLI, 
whichever is more beneficial, subject to the submission of the above documents, if applicable. 
** As per the Finance Act, 2021, Section 206AB has been inserted effective July 1, 2021, wherein higher rate of tax (twice 

under the provisions of the aforesaid section. However, in case a non-resident shareholder or a non-resident Foreign 
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Portfolio Investor (FPI) / Foreign Institutional Investor (FII), higher rate of tax as mentioned in Section 206AB shall not 
apply if such non-resident does not have a permanent establishment in India.
 

19. Documents (duly completed and signed), as envisaged above, shall be sent to the Company on its e-mail info@creative-
cast.com or uploaded (at appropriate weblink provided in the e-mail) on the website of Link Intime India Private Ltd on or 
before September 16, 2022 in order to enable the Company/ R&T Agent to determine and deduct appropriate TDS / 
Withholding Tax. Incomplete and/or unsigned forms and declarations will not be considered by the Company. No 
communication on the tax determination/ deduction shall be considered after September 16, 2022, 6:00 PM.  The Company 
will arrange to email a soft copy of TDS certificate to members on their registered email ID. 

 
20. Members may note that in case the tax on said final dividend is deducted at a higher rate in absence of receipt of the 

aforementioned details/documents, option is available to them to file the return of income as per Income Tax Act, 1961 and 
claim an appropriate refund, if eligible. 

 
21. In the event of any income tax demand (including interest, penalty, etc.) arising from any misrepresentation, inaccuracy or 

omission of information provided / to be provided by the Member(s), such Member(s) will be responsible to indemnify the 
Company and also, provide the Company with all information / documents and co-operation in any appellate proceedings. 

 
22. This Communication is not exhaustive and does not purport to be a complete analysis or listing of all potential tax 

consequences in the matter of dividend payment. Members should consult their tax advisors for requisite action to be taken by 
them. 

 
23. All communications/ queries in this respect to dividend should be addressed to our R&T Agent, Link Intime India Private 

Limited on their e-maid ID given in the e-mail communication. 

24. The members who have not encashed their Dividend Warrants / Cheques / DD for any previous period are requested to send 
the same for revalidation to the Company at its Registered office. 

25. In terms of Section 124 and 125 of the Companies Act, 2013, any dividend, remaining unpaid or unclaimed for a period of 
seven years from the date of transfer of such dividend to Unpaid Dividend Account of a company shall be transferred by the 
company along with interest accrued, if any, 
(IEPF). Accordingly, the unpaid or unclaimed dividend, if any, for the financial year 2014-15 shall be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund Account. Members, who have not encashed their dividend warrant so far, for the 
financial year 2015-16 and the subsequent years, are requested to make their claims at the Registered office of the Company. It 
may be noted that once the unclaimed dividend is transferred to the IEPF as above, no claim shall lie against the Company or 
the said fund in respect of any amounts which were unclaimed / unpaid for a period of seven years from the dates that they are 
transferred to Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company and no payment shall be made in respect of any such claims. 

Further, pursuant to Section 124 of the Act read with the IEPF Rules; all shares on which dividend has not been paid or 
claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred to IEPF Authority as notified by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs. 

26. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by 
every participant in securities market. Moreover, SEBI has also mandated to provide bank details, in addition to PAN, of 
securities holders who holds shares of the company in physical form. Members holding shares in electronic form or physical 
form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN or Bank Details as the case may be to their Depository Participant(s) with 
whom they are maintaining their demat accounts and members holding shares in physical form to the Company /its R&T 
Agent. 

27. The Register of 
Companies Act, 2013, the Register of contracts or arrangements in which the Directors are interested under Section 189 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and all other documents referred to in the Notice will be available for inspection at the Registered Office 
of the Company during normal business hours (10:00 a.m. to 06:00 p.m.) on all working days except Friday and public 
holidays up to the date of the 37th AGM of the Company. 

 
28. Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations, in respect of the directors seeking 

appointment / reappointment at the 37thAGM, forms part of this Notice. 

29. In order to use natural resources, we request members to update their email address with their depository Participants to enable 
the Company to send communications electronically. 

30. Any request by demat holders for change of bank particulars after dispatch of Dividend Warrant should be accompanied by 
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copy of Client Master list showing the changed bank details.

31. Members who hold shares in physical form in multiple folios in identical names or joint holding in same order of names, if 
any, are requested to send the share certificates to Link Intime India Private Limited, for consolidation into a single folio.

32. Members desirous of obtaining any information concerning the accounts or operations of the Company are requested to 
communicate their questions in writing to the Company, on info@creative-cast.com, at least 10 (Ten) days before the date of 
the Meeting so that the information required may be made available at the Meeting. 

 
33. Voting process and instruction regarding remote e-voting: 

The instructions for members voting electronically are as under: 

(A) For Individual shareholders holding securities in Demat mode: 

Type of 
shareholders 

 Login Method 

 
Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat 
mode with CDSL 
Depository 

1) Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and 
password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. 
The URL for users to login to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
visit www.cdslindia.com and click on Login icon and select New System Myeasi. 

2) After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible 
companies where the evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On 
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 
provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & 
voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of all e-
Voting Service Providers i.e. CDSL/NSDL/KARVY/LINKINTIME, so that the user can visit the e-

 
3) If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 
4) Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and 

PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on  www.cdslindia.com home page or click on 
https://evoting.cdslindia.com/Evoting/EvotingLogin The system will authenticate the user by 
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also 
able to directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL 
Depository 

1) If you are already registered for NSDL IDeAS facility, please visit the e-Services website of NSDL. 
Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-

You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, you will be able 
to see e- - -Voting services and you will be 
able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will 
be re-directed to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-
Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2) If the user is not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp 

3) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page 
of e-Voting 

your sixteen digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code 
as shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name 
and you will be redirected to e-Voting service provider website for casting your vote during the 
remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting 

Individual 
Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat 
mode) login through 
their Depository 
Participants DP) 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository 
Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility.  After Successful login, you will be 
able to see e-Voting option. Once you click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and Forget 
Password option available at abovementioned website. 

For any technical issues related to login through Depository i.e. CDSL and NSDL, Individual Shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode may access the helpdesk as under: 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL helpdesk by 
sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.comor contact at 022- 23058738 
and 22-23058542-43 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in Demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL helpdesk by 
sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 
1800 22 44 30   

(B) Other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat mode & Physical shareholders. 
 

1) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com. 
 

2)  
3) Now enter your User ID  

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,  
b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,  
c. Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the Company. 

 
4) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login. 

 
5) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of 

any company, then your existing password is to be used.  

6) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below: 
 

 For Physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares 
In Demat. 

PAN Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department (Applicable for both demat 
shareholders as well as physical shareholders) 

 Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are 
requested to use the sequence number sent by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA. 

Dividend 
Bank Details 
OR Date of 
Birth (DOB) 

Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat 
account or in the company records in order to login. 

 If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company, please enter the member id / 
folio number in the Dividend Bank details field. 

 
(ii) After entering these details  

 
(iii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen. However, shareholders 

required to mandatorily enter 
their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this password is to be also used by the demat holders for 
voting for resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting 
through CDSL platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care 
to keep your password confidential. 
 

(iv) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in 
this Notice. 
 

(v) Click on the EVSN for the relevant CREATIVE CASTINGS LIMITED on which you choose to vote. 
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(vi) . 
Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the Resolution and option NO implies 
that you dissent to the Resolution. 

(vii)  

(viii) After sel

vote. 
 

(ix) your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 
 

(x)  
 

(xi) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and 
click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system. 
 

(xii) There is also an optional provision to upload BR/POA if any uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for 
verification. 
 

(xiii) Additional Facility for Non  Individual Shareholders and Custodians For Remote e-Voting only. 
 Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to 

www.evotingindia.com  
 

 A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed to 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com. 
 

 After receiving the login details a Compliance User should be created using the admin login and password. The 
Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on. 
 

 The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong mapping. 
 

 It is Mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 
 

 Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required mandatory to send the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter 
etc. together with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer 
and to the Company at the email address viz; info@creative-cast.com (designated email address by company)   , if they 
have voted from individual tab & not uploaded same in the CDSL e-voting system for the scrutinizer to verify the same. 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH 
THE COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share 
certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id. 
 

2. For Demat shareholders -, please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) 
 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders  Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

If you have any queries or issues regarding attending AGM & e-Voting from the CDSL e-Voting System, you can write an 
email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33. 

All grievances connected with the facility for voting by electronic means may be addressed to Mr. Rakesh Dalvi, Sr. Manager, 
(CDSL, ) Central Depository Services (India) Limited, A Wing, 25th Floor, Marathon Futurex, Mafatlal Mill Compounds, N 
M Joshi Marg, Lower Parel (East), Mumbai - 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or call  toll free no. 
1800 22 55 33. 

07Notice of AGM



 

34. Route-map for attaining the 37th Annual general Meeting of the Company:

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Details of the directors seeking re/appointment in 37th Annual General Meeting to be held on September 26, 2022. 

Name of Director & DIN Hiren N. Vadgama, DIN: 00145992 
Date of Birth (Age) 26/11/1972 (49 years) 
Date of first Appointment on the Board 19/08/2013 

Brief Resume 

Mr. Hiren Vadgama is a Mechanical Engineer and his competency in 
the field aids the company in product development. He is a man with 
great vision supported by strong determination and zeal for 
identifying potential projects. He has 24 years industry specific 
experience. 

Qualification B. E. Mechanical 
Terms and conditions for Appointment Liable to retire by rotation and shall entitled to get sitting fees only. 
Details of Remuneration Not Applicable 
Shareholding in the company as on March 31, 2022 10,440 
No. of Board meetings attended during the year 05 

Membership of Committees of Board 
He is member of Stakeholders Relationship Committee & Chairman 
of Board of Austin Engineering Company Limited 

Chairmanship of Committees of Board Not Applicable 
Relationship with other directors/KMPs of company Not Applicable 

List of other Companies/LLPs in which holding the 
position of Director/Designated Partner 

1. Eminent Trading India LLP 
2. Specmac Techno Private Limited 
3. Marthen Enterprises Private Limited 
4. Vwap Investments Private Limited 
5. Austin Engineering Company Limited 

Name of listed entities from which the person has 
resigned in the past three years. 

Nil 
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To the Members, 

The Board of Directors hereby submits the 37th 
financial statement, for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022  

Financial Results: 
(As per Indian Accounting Standards)                                                                                                      (Amount in Lacs) 

Particulars 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2022 
For the year ended 

March 31, 2021 

(i) Revenue from operations and other income 4,272.96 3,122.51 

(ii) 
Gross Profit before Finance Cost, Depreciation and 
Taxation (PBIDT) 

481.60 455.18 

 Less :  Finance Cost 0.49 0.68 

(iii) Profit before Depreciation and Taxation 481.11 454.50 

 Less : Depreciation 59.24 65.69 

(iv) Profit Before Tax (PBT) 421.87 388.81 

(v) Less: Provision for Taxes:   

 (a) Current Tax 113.96 105.10 

 (b) Prior Year Tax (0.05) (2.93) 

 (c) Deferred Tax (20.13) 3.41 

(vi) Profit after Tax (PAT / PAIDT) 328.10 283.23 

 
Your Company is manufacturing investment casting products and it has also revenue from wind-mill turbine. Presently, it is 
supplying over 5000 different types of castings in as cast & in fully machined conditions to almost every field of engineering 
applications such as pumps & valves, defense, oil & refinery, fire control equipment automobiles etc. 

Performance highlights of the Company: 
Operational revenue of the Company increased by 39.34 percent as compared to previous financial year. 
Similarly, aggregate expenditure of the Company increased by 40.87 percent compared to previous year figures; 
PBT of the Company reported increment of 8.51 percent as compared to previous year. 
PAT of the company reported increment of 15.84 percent as compared to previous year 

During the FY 2021-22, your Company has performed satisfactory against the overall industrial performance and COVID-19 
pandemic. The Company has taken all remedial measures for cost reduction, taken steps to increase better sales realization and 
has taken all steps to improve its sales which will be in the benefit of the company and all stakeholders. 

Except COVID-19 pandemic and its possible effect on financials of the Company and overall industry, there are no changes 
and commitments that have occurred after the close of the financial year till the date of this report, which affects the financial 
position of the Company. 

Impact of COVID- business: 
The impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the financial aspect is separately provided under the annexed Management Discussion 
and Analysis report. 

Dividend: 
The Board of Directors of your company is pleased to recommend a final dividend for the financial year 2021-22 of Rs. 10 per 
equity share of the face value of Rs. 10 each (i.e. @ 100%), payable to those members whose names appear in the Register of 
Members as on the Record Date which is subject to approval of members as at 37th Annual General Meeting. 

The recommended Dividend, if declared at 37th AGM of the Company, will not attract any dividend distribution tax on the 
dividend since it has been abolished but would be subject to TDS as applicable rate as prescribed in the Notice of 37th AGM. 

Transfer to Reserve: 
The Board of Directors of your company, has not proposed to transfer any amount to the Reserves for the year under review. 
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Share Capital:
There were no changes carried out in the capital structure of the company during the year under review.

Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF): 
The Board of Directors of the company hereby states that there is no outstanding amount to be transferred to Investor 
Education and Protection Fund during the year under review. 

Meetings of the Board: 
Regular meetings of the Board are held to review performance of the Company, to discuss and decide on various business 
strategies, policies and other issues. During the financial year ended March 31, 2022, 5 (Five) meetings of the Board of 
Directors were convened and held on June 09, 2021, June 12, 2021, July 28, 2021, October 30, 2021 and January 29, 2022 
respectively, wherein following Directors were present: 

 and  . 

Changes in Directors & Key Managerial Personnel (KMP): 
(i) Appointment:  

There was no instance of appointment of Director and KMPs during the period under review. 
 

(ii) Cessations: 
There was no cessation during the period under review. 
 

(iii) Retire by Rotation:  

Shri Hiren N. Vadgama (DIN: 00145992), Director of the Company is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing 37th 
Annual General Meeting and, being eligible offers himself for re-appointment. Your Board has recommended to 
reappoint him as a Director of the Company. 

The disclosures required pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 Listing Regulations and the Secretarial Standards on General Meeting ('SS-2') are given in the 
Notice of this AGM, forming part of the Annual Report. 

During the year under review, there is no changes in Key Managerial Personnel of the Company. 

Independent Directors declaration: 
The Company has received the necessary declaration from each Independent Directors in accordance with Section 149(7) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of independence as laid out in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations. Also, the Independent Directors have complied with 
the Code of Independent Directors prescribed in Schedule IV of the Act. 

Formal annual evaluation and its criteria: 
Annual performance evaluation of Board, its Committees and Individual Directors were carried-out for the Financial Year, 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(p) the Companies Act, 2013 and in compliance with the requirements of Listing 
regulations, the Board has carried out the annual performance evaluation of its own performance, the Directors individually as 
well as the evaluation of the working of its Committees. A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into 
consideration inputs received from the Directors, covering various aspects of the Board's functioning such as adequacy of the 
composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and 
governance. 

Sr.
No. 

Name of The Directors 09/06/2021 12/06/2021 28/07/2021 30/10/2021 29/01/2022 

01 D. H. Dand P P P P P 
02 R. R. Bambhania P P P P P 
03 S. V. Vaishnav P P P P P 
04 J. S. Thanki P P P A A 
05 H. N. Vadgama P P P P P 
06 P. J. Doshi P A A P A 
07 R. A. Gardi A P A A P 
08 B. R. Sureja P A P A A 
09 K. D. Panchamiya A P P A A 
10 R.S. Tilva A A A P P 
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Criteria adopted for evaluation:
(i) The Board shall evaluate the roles, functions, duties of Independent Directors (IDs) of the Company. Each ID shall be 

ich 

(ii)  Performance review of all the Non-Independent Directors of the company on the basis of the activities undertaken by 
them, expectation of board and level of participation. 

(iii)  Performance review of the Chairman of the company in terms of level of competence of chairman in steering the 
company. 

(iv)  The review and assessment of the flow of information by the company to the board and the manner in which the 
deliberations take place, the manner of placing the agenda and the contents therein. 

(v)  The review of the performance of the directors individually, its own performance as well as evaluation of working of its 
committees shall be carried out by the board. 

(vi)  On the basis of performance evaluation, it shall be determined by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the 
Board whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of ID subject to all other applicable compliances. 

Committees: 
The Company has constituted the mandatory Committees viz. Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
and Stakeholders Relationship Committee pursuant to proviso of Sections 177 and 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Board 
has reviewed the workings of the Committee from time to time to bring greater effectiveness in order to comply with the 
various requirements under the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing regulations. 

The details pertaining to the said  viz. composition, meetings, attendance etc. are included in the Corporate 
Governance Report, which are part of this report. 

 
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with the board to determine the appropriate characteristics, skills and 
experience required for the Board as a whole and its individual members with the objective of having a Board with diverse 
backgrounds and experience in business, government, education and public service. Characteristics expected of all Directors 
include independence, integrity, high personal and professional ethics, sound business judgment, ability to participate 
constructively in deliberations and willingness to exercise authority in a collective manner.  

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(e) read with Section 178(3)& (4) of the Companies Act, 2013, the policy on appointment of Board 
members including criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a Director and the policy on 
remuneration of Directors, KMP and other employees is hosted on the website of the Company i.e. http://www.creative-
cast.com/Reports/NARP.PDF.There has been no change in the policy since last financial year. 

Particulars of Employees:  
The particulars of employees are given in Annexure -  to this Report as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

Also, Statement containing the names of the top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn as per Rule 5(2) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 forms a part of Annexure - . 

statement: 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, 
confirm that: 
(i)  in the preparation of the annual accounts of the Company for the year ended on March 31, 2022, the applicable 

accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanations relating to material departures for the same; 
(ii)  the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 

were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the 
financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year under review; 

(iii)  the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other 
irregularities; 

(iv)  the Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; 
(v)  the Directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that such internal financial 

controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and 
(vi)  the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such 

systems were adequate and operating effectively. 

Adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the financial statements: 
The Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8(5)(viii) of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 re-emphasizes the need for an 
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effective Internal Financial Control system in the Company which should be adequate and shall operate effectively. The 
Company has devised proper system of internal financial control which commensurate with size and nature of Business. 

Public Deposits: 
During the financial year 2021-22, your company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 of the 
Act, read together with Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014. 

Loans, Investments, Guarantees and Securities:  
During the financial year, your Company has neither given Loans nor provided securities and guarantees in connection with 
Loans. Moreover, whatsoever investment made in the company is enumerated in the Note - 6 to the Financial Statement which 
is self-explanatory. 

Related Party Transactions (RPTs): 
All Contracts / Arrangements / Transactions entered by the Company during the financial year with related parties were in 
ordinary transactions described in Form AOC-2 
which is annexed herewith as Annexure  . A statement showing the disclosure of transactions with related parties as 
required under Ind AS 24 is set out separately in the financial statement. 

The board has approved a policy for entering into related party transactions which has been hosted on the website of the 
company. The web-link for the same is http://creative-cast.com/Reports/PartyTransactionPolicy27062020.PDF. The related 
party transactions, wherever necessary are carried out by company as per this policy. 

There were no materially significant related party transactions entered into by the company during the year, which may have 
potential conflict with the interest of the company at large. There were no pecuniary relationship or transactions entered into by 
Independent Director with the company during the year under review. 

Conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo: 
The disclosure of particulars with respect to conservation of energy, a statement giving details of Technology Absorption, 
Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo in accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is annexed hereto as Annexure  . 

Risk Management: 
Your Company has not set-up separate risk management Committee or policy thereon, however, your Management, from time-
to- time, identify, analyse, evaluate and mitigate the industrial, economical, financial, other risk that emerges in the course of 
business. Also, the steps required for reducing such risks is taken care of by the company. 

Vigil Mechanism: 
To ensure high level of honesty, integrity and ethical behavior amongst its employees, the Company has established a Vigil 
Mechanism in compliance with the provisions of section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule-7 of Companies 
(Meeting of Board and its powers) Rules, 2014, for the directors and Employees to report genuine concerns and grievances. 
This mechanism provides adequate safeguards against victimization of employees and directors and also provides for direct 
access to the chairperson of Audit Committee. 

The details of the policy have been disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report, which is a part of this report and is available 
on http://www.creative-cast.com/Reports/VigilM.PDF.  

Auditors: 
(i)  Statutory Auditor: 

M/s. J. C. Ranpura & Co., Chartered Accountants, were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company in 35th AGM of 
the Company for a period of five (5) years upto the conclusion of 40 th AGM of the Company. 

The report of   M/s. J. C. Ranpura & Co. on audited financial statements and notes on financial statement as referred in   
their report, for the year ended on March 31, 2022, are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments of the 

 

(ii)  Secretarial Auditor: 
In terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act 2013 and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 framed thereunder, CS Mayur Buha, proprietor of M. Buha & Co., Practicing 
Company Secretaries, Vadodara, was appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the company for the financial year 2021-22. 
The Secretarial Audit Report as Submitted by them in the prescribed form MR-3 is attached as Annexure   and 
forming part of this Report. 
 
There are few qualifications or observations or adverse remarks or disclaimer of the Secretarial Auditors in his Report 
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which call for explanations from the Board of Directors and the same are provided as under:

Due to oversight, the Form IEPF- same would be rectified in due course.
Due to oversight, the ratio on Operating Profit Margin not mentioned in Management Discussion and Analysis Report 
attached to the Annual Report for the FY 2020-21, but, the defect has been rectified in this report. 
 

(iii)  Cost Auditor: 
Your Company do not fall under the mandatory maintenance of Cost Records and/or get records audited from Practicing 
Cost Accountants as per Section 148 read with Rule 4(2) of the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014. Hence, 
your Company has not appointed any Practicing Cost Auditor. 
 

Annual Secretarial Compliance Report: 
Pursuant to SEBI circular No-CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th February, 2019, your Company has submitted the Secretarial 
Compliance Report of the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 issued by CS Mayur Buha, proprietor of 
M. Buha & Co., Practicing Company Secretaries, Vadodara with BSE Limited within the permitted time period. 

Internal Auditors: 
M/s. Subhash Akbari & Co., Chartered Accountants, Internal Auditors of the Company has conducted periodic audit of all 
operations of the Company. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has reviewed the findings of Internal Auditors 
regularly. 

Disclosure on compliance with Secretarial Standards:  
Your directors confirm that the applicable Secretarial Standards as issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, 
have been complied with. 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report: 
Listing regulations, is 

annexed with this Report as Annexure  . 
 

Corporate Governance: 
Separate report on Corporate Governance along with CEO/CFO Certifications and Certificate of Company Secretary in 
practice on compliance with norms pertaining to the Corporate Governance are separately annexed with this report as 
Annexure  . 

 
Annual Return: 
Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Annual 
Return for FY 2021-22  www.creative-cast.com.  

 
Industrial Relations: 
The Industrial Relations between the Management and Employees of the Company at all levels continued to be extremely 
cordial during the entire year. Both the Management as well as Employees have good relations and work for the betterment of 
the value of the company. 

Business Responsibility Report: 
The Business Responsibility Report under regulation 34 of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirement) 
Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to Company for the year under review ended on March 31, 2022. Therefore, there is no 
requirement to submit a separate report by the Company. 

Prevention of insider trading and code of conduct for fair disclosure: 
The Company has adopted a code of conduct for regulating, monitoring and reporting trading by Insiders in securities of the 
company. The code requires pre-
securities of the company by the directors and the Directors while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in 
relation to the company and during the period when the trading window is closed. 

The company has also adopted a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure and Conduct of Unpublished price 
Sensitive information to formulate a stated framework and policy for prompt and fair disclosure of events and occurrences that 
could impact price discovery in the market for securities of the company. The policy is available on website i.e. www.creative-
cast.com of the Company. 

Insurance:  
All moveable and fixed Assets are adequately insured. 

13Board's report



 

Other Information:

(i) The Company do not have any subsidiary, joint venture or, associate Company, hence, no need to state anything about 
the same; 

(ii) No fraud has been identified during the financial year.  
(iii) The Provision of Section 135 of the Act with respect to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is not applicable to the 

Company, hence, there is no need to develop policy on CSR and take initiative thereon; 
(iv) No significant material orders were passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status 

and company's operations in future; 
(v) During the financial year, your Company has neither issued any kind of Securities nor made buy-back of securities; 
(vi) Your Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the 

Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Your Board states 
that during the year under review, there were no cases at the work place filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of 
Women (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. Disclosures in pursuance to the Sexual Harassment of 
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 is provided separately in the Corporate 
Governance Report. 

(vii) There are no proceedings initiated/pending against your Company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 
(viii) Difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one time settlement and the valuation done while 

taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions: Not Applicable. 
(ix) There have been no material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company which have 

occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of 
the report. 
 

Human Resources: 
The high level of motivation of the employees and their identification as well as involvement with the Company is the basis for 
the creation of a strong team, who continuously advance the innovative brands and superior technologies with their inventive 
talent and pioneering spirit. The training courses are evolved to internalize the principles of sustainable development and to 

company helps build up a brand value and to achieve the good position. 

Certificates: 
The Company possessed the following certificates. 
(1) ISO 9001:2015, (2) ISO 14001:2015, (3) ISO 45001:2018, (4) PED 2014/68/EU& AD2000 MERKBLATT W0 Certified 
and . 

Appreciation: 
Your Directors are grateful for the support and co-

 
For and on behalf of Board 

Sd/- 
Dhirubhai H. Dand 

  Chairman  
DIN: 00284065 

  Dolatpara, August 13, 2022 
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ANNEXURES TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT
Annexure-A

Part-A 
PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION

1.  The information required under Section 197 of the Act and rules made thereunder, in respect of employees of the 
Company are as follows:- 

2.  The Ratio of remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of employees for the Financial Year: 
Ratio of each director's remuneration to Median 
Remuneration of Employees. 

Financial Year 2020-21 Financial Year 2021-22 

Shri Rajan R. Bambhania, Managing Director 9.14 10.25 
Shri Siddharth V. Vaishnav, Whole-time Director 9.14 10.25 

3.  The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, Manager, if any, 
during the Financial Year: 

Name of Person  % increased/ (decrease) 
Shri Rajan R. Bambhania, Managing Director 13.96 
Shri Siddharth V. Vaishnav, Whole-time Director 13.96 
Shri Ashok L. Shekhat, CFO 3.14 
Ms. Ekta Bhimani, CS 0.79 

4.  The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employee in the financial year: 10.51% 
5.  The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company:  137 (Previous Year: 138) 
6.  The explanation in relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance: 

Particulars  % increased/ (decrease) 
Total Remuneration 11.30% 
Company Performance-PBT (In Rs.) 8.50% 

 
7.  Comparison of remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company: 

Comparison of remuneration of KMP 
against Company Performance 

2020-21 2021-22 Differential 
% increased/ 
(decrease) 

Company Performance-PBT (In Rs.) 3,88,80,741 4,21,87,452 33,06,711 8.50% 
KMP Remuneration 50,33,230    55,94,566   5,61,336 11.15% 

Note: KMP includes Managing Director, Executive Directors, CFO, CS. 
8.  Variation in the market capitalization of the Company, price earnings ratio as at the closing date of the current financial 

year and previous financial year and percentage increase or decrease in the market quotation of the shares of the 
Company in the rate at which the Company come out with the last public offer in case of listed companies, and in case of 
unlisted companies, the variation in the net worth of the Company as at the close of the financial year and previous 
financial year: 

Particulars Unit 2020-21 2021-22 Variation 
Market Capitalization  In Rs. 46,15,00,000 49,53,00,000 3,38,00,000 
PE Ratio Ratio 16.29 15.10 (1.19) 
Market Price as on 31st March-Per Share In Rs. 355.00 381.00 26.00 
Market quotes on last public offer (1996) In Rs. 55.00 55.00 0.00 
Increase or decrease  300.00 326.00 26.00 

9.  Average percentile increases already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration: 

Particulars  % increased/ (decrease) 
Remuneration other than managerial remuneration 12.48% 
Managerial Remuneration 13.96% 

Justification Note for substantial increase : Not applicable 
10.  Comparison of each remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the Company: 

Particulars 
2021-22 Remuneration as a % of PBT 

(FY-2021-22) 
Company Performance-PBT (in Rs.) 4,21,87,452  
Shri Rajan R. Bambhania, MD 21,70,170 5.14% 
Shri Siddharth V. Vaishnav, WTD 21,70,170 5.14% 
Shri Ashok Shekhat, CFO 8,72,626 2.07% 
Ms. Ekta Bhimani, CS 3,81,600 0.90% 

Note: KMP includes Managing Director, Executive Directors, CFO, CS 
11.  The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by Directors: N.A. 
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12. The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid to the director to that of the employees who are not directors but receive 
remuneration in excess to highest paid during the year: N.A.

13.  Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the policy of the Company: 

Company. The Company affirms remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company 

Part-B 
STATEMENT OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES OF THE COMPANY 

Name of 
Employee 

Vishal D. 
Patel 

Heenaben 
V. Patel 

Kokilaben  
D. Dand 

Ashokbhai 
R. Dholiya 

M G 
Doddamani 

Dipti S. 
Vaishnav 

Sailesh T. 
Hirani 

Paresh R. 
Bhut 

Dinesh L. 
Kardani 

Harpalsinh 
J. 

Rayjada 

Age (in 
Years) 

42 38 67 54 62 41 52 45 53 35 

Designation 
VP 

(Production) 
H. R. 

Executive 
Executive 

Works 
Manager 

Senior 
Marketing 
Manager 

Executive 
Manager- 

Export 

HoD-Tool 
Develop-

ment 

Maintenanc
e Engineers 

Melting 
In-charge 

Remunerati
on received 
(in Rs.) 

19,86,385 12,08,757 12,08,757 10,28,261 7,76,971 7,44,620 6,90,252 6,73,278 5,47,652 4,97,152 

On Roll / On 
Contract 

On roll On roll On roll On roll On roll On roll On roll On roll On roll On roll 

Qualification
s 

B. Com B. Com M.A. D.M.E. 
BE (Mech) 

DME 
B. Com D.C.A. B. Sc I.T.I Ele. 

MSC IT 
PGDCA 

BA 

Experience 21 Years 16 Years 22 Years 31 Years 32 Years 5 years 30 Years 25 years 36 Years 6 Years 

Date of 
Joining 

09/09/2019 01/07/2006 01/04/2006 19/08/2014 25/03/2019 01/04/2017 21/07/1992 01/07/1997 18/09/1986 01/07/2016 

Immediate 
preceding 
employment
, if any 

No Data No Data No Data No Data 
Nova 

Technocast 
Rajkot 

No Data No Data No Data No Data No Data 

Percentage 
of equity 
shares held 

2.29 2.46 2.46 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Whether 
relative of 
Director or 
manager, if 
any name 
them. 

Son of Shri 
D. H. Dand, 
Chairman 

- 

Wife of 
Shri D.H. 

Dand, 
choirman 

- - 

Wife of Shri 
S.V. 

Vaishnav, 
Executive 
Director 

- - - - 

Note: (1) In the above list, Key Managerial Personnel are excluded. (2) % of shareholding as at March 31, 2022. 

For and on behalf of Board 
Sd/- 

Dhirubhai H. Dand 
  Chairman  
DIN: 00284065 

  Dolatpara, August 13, 2022 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

16Board's report > Particulars of remuneration



 

Annexure-B
FORM NO. AOC-2

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in 
sub-section (1) of 
thereto: 

1 
Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions 

 

Not Applicable 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship  
(b) Nature of contracts/arrangements/transactions 
(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions  

(d) 
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if any  

(e) 
Justification for entering into such contracts or 
arrangements or transactions 

(f) Date(s) of approval by the Board  
(g) Amount paid as advances, if any:  

(h) 
Date on which the special resolution was passed in 
general meeting as required under first proviso to 
section 188  

2 
Details of material contracts or arrangement or 

 
 

(a) Name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship  

1) Kokilaben D. Dand (wife of Shri D. H. Dand) 
2) Heena Vishal Patel (Wife of Shri V. D. Patel) 
3) Dipti S. Vaishnav (Wife of Shri S. V. Vaishnav) 
4) Vishal D. Patel (Son of Shri D. H. Dand) 
5) Specmac Techno Private Limited (Directors of 

the Company are members and directors) 

(b) Nature of contracts / arrangements / transactions 
No. 1 to 4 are in Employment in the Company and 
No. 5 is a Company wherein Directors are Directors 
& Members of that Company. 

(c) Duration of the contracts / arrangements / transactions 

1) Duration of contract with No. 1 to 4 is till 
Resignation 

whichever is earlier / Removal by the Company. 
Provided that term of appointment of Shri V. D. 
Patel is for 5 years. 

2) Contract with Specmac Techno Private Limited 
is for FY 2021-22.  

(d) 
Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or 
transactions including the value, if any:  

1) Basic Remuneration to Kokilaben D. Dand & 
Heena Vishal Patel: Rs. 82,053.00 per month, 
respectively. 

2) Basic Remuneration to Dipti S. Vaishnav: Rs. 
51,107.00 per month 

3) Basic Remuneration to Vishal D. Patel: Rs. 
1,35,000.00 per month 

4) Annual transaction with Specmac Techno Private 
Limited for Rs. 1,97,10,742.00. 

(e) Date(s) of approval by the Board, if any: 

None of the relatives were appointed during the year  
under review, but, omnibus approval granted to 
aforesaid transactions by the Audit Committee of 
the Company and reviewed by Board in its meeting 
held on June 12, 2021.  

(f) Amount paid as advances, if any:  Not applicable 
For and on behalf of Board 

Sd/- 
Dhirubhai H. Dand 

  Chairman  
DIN: 00284065 

  Dolatpara, August 13, 2022 
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Annexure - C                            
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO  

1. Conservation of energy 
Your Company has identified second source of energy by installing two Windmills. Such windmills were not installed during 
the year but consequent to installation, the cost of energy reduced substantially over a period of time. Moreover, the Company 
has earned Rs. 149.92 lacs (Previous Year Rs. 120.37 lacs) revenue from windmills during the year under review. 

2. Technology absorption 
Your company operates on in house - technology developed for the products.  

Your company has adopted various steps with regards to develop new composition of metals, improve upon grain structure and 
control of the inclusion rating by introducing use of latest melting and metal purifying practices. 

3. Foreign exchange earnings & outgo  
Foreign Exchange Earnings on account of Export is equivalent to Rs. 2,406.60 lacs (Previous Year. Rs. .1,690.26 lacs). The 
total Foreign exchange used by way of Traveling Expenses Rs. NIL (Previous Year Rs. NIL), by way of Participation fee 
Expenses Rs. NIL (Previous Year Rs. Nil) and Foreign Exchange outgo by way of Import of tools is equivalent to Rs.13.58 
lacs (Previous Year Rs. 15.82 lacs). 

For and on behalf of Board 
Sd/- 

Dhirubhai H. Dand 
  Chairman  
DIN: 00284065 

Dolatpara, August 13, 2022 
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UDIN: F009000D000790935 

    Annexure - D 

Form MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 

Personnel) Rules 2014] 

To, 

The Members,  

Creative Castings Limited. 

 

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate 

practices by M/s. Creative Castings Limited (hereinafter called 'the Company'). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner 

that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my opinion 

thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 

by the Company and  to the extent the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 

representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations 

made by the Management and considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs and Securities and 

Exchange Board of India warranted due to the spread of the COVID-19 pandemic, I hereby report that in  my opinion, the 

Company has, during the 'Audit Period' covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2022 generally complied with the 

statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in 

place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company for the 

financial year ended on March 31, 2022 according to the provisions of: 

 

(1) The Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') and the rules made thereunder; 

(2) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made thereunder; 

(3) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

(4) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings. 

 (Not Applicable to the Company during Audit Period); 

(5) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act') viz.:- 

 

5.1 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011.  
 

5.2 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015; 
 

5.3 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not 

Applicable to the Company during Audit Period); 
 

5.4 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (repealed on 16th 

August, 2021) (Not Applicable to the Company during Audit Period);  
 

5.5 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 (in 

relation to the Companies Act and dealing with client); 
 

5.6 The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (repealed on 10th June, 2021) 

and Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2021 (enforced on 10th June, 2021) 

(Not Applicable to the Company during Audit Period);  
 

5.7 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not Applicable to the Company 

during Audit Period); 
 

5.8 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not Applicable to the 

Company during Audit Period); 
 

5.9 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable Preference Shares) 

Regulations,2013 (repealed on 16th August, 2021) (Not Applicable to the Company during Audit Period); 
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5.10 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible Securities) Regulations, 2021 (enforced on 

16th August, 2021) (Not Applicable to the Company during Audit Period); 
 

5.11 Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018 (in relation to compliance with 

Rights & Obligations of Issuer under Chapter VII); 
 

(6) Other Applicable Laws: To the best of my knowledge and information and based on the information sought from the 

Management, there are no any other company specific / industry specific laws which are applicable to the Company during the 

Audit period. 
 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(a) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India; and 

(b) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock Exchange in India read with Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) 

During the Audit period under review the Company has generally complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations, 

Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to following observations: 

(a) Section 125 of the Act read with Rule 5 of Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, 

Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016: 

 The Company has not filed Form IEPF-2 containing details of unclaimed and unpaid amounts of Dividends concerning to 

previous year(s). 

(b) Regulation 34(3) read with Para B of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015: 

Management Discussion and Analysis Report attached to the Annual Report for the FY 2020-21 do not contain 

"Operating Profit Margin" ratio. 
 

I further report that: 

(a) The Board of Directors of the Company was duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 

Directors and Independent Directors during the audit period. Provided further that no changes in the composition of the Board 

of Directors occurred during the Audit period, but, retirement of Director and his reappointment was carried-out in compliance 

with the provisions of the Act. 

(b) Adequate Notice was given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed Notes on Agenda were sent 

at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 

Agenda Items before the Meeting and for meaningful participation at the Meeting. 

(c)  Decisions at the Board Meetings were taken unanimously. 

 

I further report that: 

There is still scope to improve the systems and processes in the company and operations of the company to commensurate with 

the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure Compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines. 
 

I further report that during the audit period the Company has not passed any Resolutions which are have major bearing on 

the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc.  
 

I further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of: 

1.  Public / Right / Preferential Issue of securities; 

2.  Redemption / Buy Back of Securities; 

3.  Merger / Amalgamation / Reconstruction etc.; 

4.  Foreign technical Collaborations 

  

I further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable financial laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, notifications, 

circulars, directives including but not limited to direct and indirect tax laws, Accounting Standards (including Indian 

Accounting Standards) etc. has not been reviewed in my Audit, since the same is subject to review by designated professional/s 

during the course of statutory financial audit. 
 

I further state that my report of even date is to be read along with "Annexure–I" appended hereto. 

For, M. BUHA & CO. 

Company Secretaries 

Sd/- 

MAYUR BUHA 

[proprietor] 

FCS No. 9000, C. P. No. 10487 

Vadodara, August 13, 2022 
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Annexure - I
To,
The Members,  
Creative Castings Limited.

Management responsibility  
1. Maintenance of secretarial records and compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards etc. are the responsibility of the management of the Company.  

Secretarial auditor's responsibility  
2. My responsibility is to express an opinion, after limited examination adopted procedures, on the secretarial records of the 

Company; 
3. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of 

the contents of the Secretarial records.  The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. I believe that the processes and practices that I have followed provides a reasonable basis for my opinion; 

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 
happening of events etc; 

Disclaimer  
5. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company; and 
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For, M. BUHA & CO. 
Company Secretaries 

SD/- 
MAYUR BUHA 

[proprietor] 
FCS No. 9000, C. P. No. 10487 

Vadodara, August 13, 2022 
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Annexure - E
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT

I. An Overview:
MD&A") summarizes the 

s Limited, for 
the year ended on March 31, 2022 contains financial highlights but does not contain the complete financial statements of 

notes thereto and the other information included elsewhere in the Annual Report. Statements in the Management 
Discussio
forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws and regulations. Actual results might differ 
materially from those expressed or implied. MD&A is headed towards providing 
financial statements that enables investors to see the company through the eyes of management and to enhance financial 
disclosure. 

II. About the Company: 
Creative Castings 
casting manufacturer & exporter by lost wax process with an installed capacity of 840 MT/annum. The Company is 
committed to supply precision parts with guaranteed material & casting quality. We have the state-of-the-art facilities & 
expertise to back our commitment. The office & plant spread over 8924 Sq. Mts. area with a production area of around 
3500 Sq. Mts. & is equipped with latest technology production, testing & measurement facilities & with a full standby 
captive power generation for uninterrupted production. 

The Company is engaged in supply over 5,478 different types of castings in as cast & in fully machined conditions to 
almost every field of engineering applications such as pumps & valves, defense, oil & refinery, fire control equipment, 
automobiles etc. 

An experience of more than three decades in design & manufacture of complicated parts weighing from few grams to 
120 kg. the Company can handle large volumes 100000 pieces /month ability to handle over more than 250 different 
alloys to customized specification. 

Company has strong business relationship since more than 30 years with its 50% world largest customers. 

III. Financial Performance: 
Particulars 2021-2022 (Rs. In Lakhs) 2020-2021 (Rs. in Lakhs) 
Total Income 4,272.96 3,122.51 
Total Expenses 3,851.09 2,733.71 
Profit before tax 421.87 388.81 
Tax Expenses 93.78 105.58 
Profit After Tax 328.10 283.23 

During the year, the Company recorded Revenue from Operations of Rs. 42.72 crore as against Rs. 31.22 crore in previous 
year. Similarly, the exports of goods have witnessed a rise of 42.28 percent compared to previous year and stood at Rs. 24.39 
crore which is representing more than half of total turnover of the Company. Profit after tax has stood at Rs. 3.28 crore as 
against 2.83 crore with marginal increase of 15.84 percent compared with previous year. Your company is continuously 
endeavoring for better performance and effective and efficient management to achieve its financial goals.  

Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under section 133 of the companies act 2013 
ther relevant provisions of the Act. These financial statements have been prepared and presented on the 

accrual basis of accounting under historical cost convention or fair values as per the requirement of Ind AS prescribed under 
section 133 of the Act. The financial statements prepared as per the applicable Accounting Standards and there is no any 
material departure or deviation in giving treatment to any transactions hence management discussion thereon is unsolicited. 

IV. History: 
The company was incorporated as "Creative Castings Private Limited" on November 22, 1985. After Incorporation, the 
said company took over the running business of the erstwhile Partnership firm, M/s. Creative Castings with effect from 
March 21, 1986 on dissolution of the Partnership firm. All the assets and liabilities were transferred to Creative Castings 
Private Limited. The business set up by the firm in 1980 was carried by the company and all the erstwhile partners of the 
firm were appointed as the directors on the board of the company. The Company became a Public Limited Company on 
October 06, 1994. 
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V. Product Line:
Creative Castings Ltd. is a manufacturer & exporter of machined as well as unmachined investment castings to all key 
user industries like Pumps & Valve Industries, Oil & Refineries, General Engineering, Electrical engineering, Fire 
control equipments, Medical implants, Agricultural Machineries, Defense Industries etc.  

The company has two furnaces with capacities of 300 kg per heat and 250 kg per heat respectively. The company's 
product has wide range of application in different industries viz. Industrial Pumps, Electrical Engg., Valve Industries, 
Anti Fire Equipment, Defense Industries, Instrumentations, Medical Implants, General Engineering, Oi1 and Gas 
Industries, Power Industries etc. The Company has developed over 5,478 various types of castings till date. 

Moreover, the castings produced by the company find applications in automobiles, chemical processing, food processing, 
pharmaceutical, fertilizer industry and engineering products. 

The Company manufactures both ferrous and non-ferrous castings. Ferrous castings comprise of stainless steel castings 
of various grades and carbon steel, which accounts for around 75% of the production. Non-ferrous castings consist of 
Cobalt base alloy and Nickel base alloy castings, which accounts for around 25% of the production.  

VI. Segment wise or product-wise performance: 
Segment-wise detailed performance is provided in the Note no. 21 and 35 to the financial statement. 

VII.  structure and outlook: 

Global Scenario: 
As per 55th World casting Census published by Modern Castings USA in December 2021, Total Global Casting 
Production 105.50 million metric tonnes, a decrease of 3.25% as compared to the previous year. China, India and the US 
hold the top three spots. Countries around the World felt the effect of Govt. Mandated work stoppages and restrictions 
due to the COVID 19 pandemic. The Global Investment Casting Market size was estimated at USD 22.11 billion in 
2021, USD 23.34 billion in 2022, and is projected to grow at a CAGR 5.83% to reach USD 31.07 billion by 2027.  

Domestic Scenario: 
India is the second largest producer of castings, globally. The Indian foundry industry produces various types of metal 
castings and cast components for application in the power, automotive, defense, railways, machine tools, agro 
machinery, tractor, earth-moving and mining machinery, electrical machinery, and oil and natural gas industries. The 
automobile sector is a major consumer of castings produced in the country.  

Foundry Industry has a turnover of approx. USD 19 billion with export of approx. USD 3.1 billion. However, Grey ir on 
castings have the major share i.e. approx 68% of total castings produced. There are approx 4500 units out of which 90% 
can be classified as MSMEs. Approx 1500 units are having International Quality Accreditation.  

The domestic foundry industry is aiming to double its market size to USD 32 billion and annual production capacity to 
21 million tonnes (MT) over the next 5-7 years, as per the analysis of industry body Institute of Indian Foundrymen. The 
industry is also expected to attract investment of Rs 500 crore from domestic and as well as international players. Current 
market size of the Indian foundry industry is at USD 16 billion with capacity of 10.5 million tonnes per annum (MTPA). 
The industry employees around 5 lakh people directly and 15 lakh indirectly. 

VIII.Opportunities& Threats: 

Opportunities: 
Market Opportunities: The foundry market in India's share is expected to increase by USD 12.23 billion from 2021 to 
2025, and the market's growth momentum will accelerate at a CAGR of 10%. India is one of the top countries in the 
global foundry market. The major reason for this is the growing demand for metal casting from the automotive sector. To 
cater to the growing demand for metal castings in India, the foundries are investing in new technologies and equipment. 
Indian foundries will benefit from technology upgrades in several ways, such as low power consumption, increased 
production efficiency, higher capacity utilization, and high profit margins. The foundries expect growth for both ferrous 
and non-ferrous castings in defense procurement. This will drive the investment by Indian foundries to ramp up their 
production capacity through technology to meet the demand for metal casting in the country during the forecast period.  

Investment in technology and R&D: To cater to the increasing demand for metal castings in India, foundries are 
investing in new technologies and equipment. Investing in energy-efficient technologies and equipment such as real-time 
power optimizers and installation of an energy management system in induction furnaces to reduce energy consumption. 
The company is also investing in R&D of compacted graphite iron for cylinder blocks and heads. The benefit from such 
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technology upgrades in several ways, such as low power consumption, increased production efficiency, higher capacity 
use, and high-profit margin.

Investment Opportunities: After slowdown witness by this Industry on account of COVID 19 lockdowns, there is 
likelihood that industry would bounce back since many factors are undergoing for change. Growth of the automobile 
industry is expected to generate huge demand for castings producers. Based on volume, India is currently the fourth 
largest automobile industry, globally. Rapid growth of the automotive sector has also led to the steady development of 
other subsidiary industries like the auto component industry, indicating huge demand for castings more particularly 
enhancement of demand of EV vehicles opened up new opportunities. As stated earlier, investment casting industry is 
expected to attract investment of Rs 500 crore from domestic and as well as international players. 

Re-implementation of Public Procurement Policy, Pradhan Mantri MUDRA Yojana, Make in India, Startup India, and 
Skill India initiatives and recent initiative of Aatmanirbhar Bharat would extend great help in the growth of the MSME 
sector in the country. 

Threats: 
Competition in the market is intense and is likely to remain so in the foreseeable future. Most international players have 

putting pressure on volume growth. 
The main challenge causing the industry down is lack of resources for technology upgradation and access to quality 
manpower as the availability of skilled manpower and the retention of managerial talent have become a key issue. 
The commodity sector is highly volatile and changes in the cycle are hardly predictable. It thus becomes imperative to 
improve product mix and diversify business over long gestation industrial sectors. 
Additive manufacturing techniques are no longer in their infancy and are finding increased application in the production 
of metallic parts. It is necessary to track changes of this unfolding technology and develop similar capabilities. 
Since most of the castings manufacturing units fall under small and medium enterprises (SMEs), they cannot use 
advanced technological equipment or automation due to high costs, thus limiting their marketing strength. It is 
challenging for them to sustain their position in the global marketplace. The inability to meet the domestic demand for 
castings and to supply quality products to the global market acts as a huge barrier for the industry to grow further. 

IX. Risks and areas of concern: 
principle is to maximize 

returns and minimize risk. 

Economy and Market Risk: 
The Automotive, Engineering, Power etc. Slowdown in 
those industries definitely impact the performance of the Company. Product demand of the Company, during the 
financial year 2021-22, was steady on accounts of aforesaid industries struggling to revamp after COVID-19 slowdown. 
The Company continuously evaluates its marketing and sales strategy and alters its sales plan in terms of products to be 
manufactured and markets to be served and keeps itself current with the changing environment. 

Foreign Exchange Risk: 
Your Company exporting its products valuing more than 50% of total turnover, hence, foreign exchange risk is 
significant. During the FY 2021-22, the total foreign currency exposure of the Company is Rs. 1,570.77 Lacs on account 
of export of machined as well unmachined investment castings. Appropriate forward cover is taken to mitigate the risks 
as per foreign exchange policy of the Company. 

Input Cost Risk: 
Our profitability and cost effectiveness may be affected due to change in the prices of raw materials, power and other 
input costs. Some of the risks that are potentially significant in nature and need careful monitoring are Raw Materials 
prices, availability of Power etc. Currently, the power is a scarce resource, but it is available through inter/intra state 
open access at higher cost. The price is highly volatile; hence it will affect the profitability. However, in order to meet 
such risk, your Company has installed two windmills for captive power consumption resultant fluctuation of power rate 
do not affect the cost of production. 

Impact of COVID-  
Lockdown started lifting in 1st quarter in FY 2021-22 slowly world over and business activities began to pick up in 2nd 
Quarter and during the 3rd quarter it looked like rough phase is over. The 4th Quarter turned out to be an opportunity to 
recoup the lost sales. The 3rd wave of COVID-19 impacted harshly resulted into losses of human lives, however, 
normalcy restored very quickly. The company set up was ready to cope up with dormant demand of pandemic period and 
new demands for production in the rest of the period of the year. The market showed V-shape recovery and the positive 
effects can be seen in the financial results of the company. 
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Further the Company has evaluated and assessed the impact of this pandemic on its financials and business operations 
and based on such assessment and current indicators of future economic conditions, there is no significant impact on its 
financial statements which can be accessed from it. 

Moreover ative competitiveness is expected to increase because of its traditional value amongst the 
customers and its strong track records in the industry. Also, unlocking the county would also help to resume the growth 
path as it was. 

X. Human resources/ industrial relations front: 
Human resource is considered as key to the future growth strategy of the Company and looks upon to focus its efforts to 
further align human resource policies, processes and initiatives to meet its business needs. In order to focus on keeping 
employees abreast of technological and technical developments, the Company provides opportunity for training and learning. 
Industrial relations are cordial. 

The Company is working on enhancing its competencies to take care of current and future business. Its employee strength as 
on March 31, 2022 was 137 (P.Y. it was 138). Human Resource and Industrial Relations departments have developed systems 
and policies on recruitment, performance management, learning and development, and employee engagement. 

The high level of motivation of the employees and their identification with the company is the basis for the creation of a strong 
team who continuously advance the innovative brands and superior technologies with their inventive talent and pioneering 
spirit. The training courses are evolved to internalize the principles of sustainable development and to uphold the Company's 
corporate culture based on fairness and team spirit. 

Internal control systems and adequacy: 
Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the 
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS. Absolute assurance cannot be 
provided that all misstatements have been detected because of inherent limitations in all control systems.  

all assets are safeguarded, transactions are authorised, recorded and reported properly following all applicable statutes, 

Audit Committee, which conducts audit in various functional areas as per audit plan approved by the Audit Committee. 
 of internal 

control. The Company has appointed an Internal Auditor who, from time to time, draw attention of chairman of Audit 
Committee of the Company about the gray area needs improvements. Audit planning and executions are oriented 
towards assessing the state of internal controls, making them stronger and addressing the risks in the functional areas of 
the Company and suggests improvements for strengthening them. Similarly, the Internal Auditors are also responsible 
for monitoring the Internal Control Systems. 

 
XI. Key Financial Ratios: 

In accordance with the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, the 
Company is required to give details of significant changes (change of 25% or more as compared to the immediately previous 
financial year) in key-specific financial ratios. 
Your Company has identified the following ratios as key financial ratios:- 

Particulars 
2022 2021 Change 

Explanation for change in ratio by more than 
25% as compared to previous year 

Debtors Turnover 20.34 22.76 10.63%  
Inventory Turnover 6.50 5.45 19.27%  
Interest Coverage Ratio N.A. N.A. N.A.  
Current Ratio 6.34 7.17 (11.62%)  
Debt Equity Ratio N.A. N.A. N.A.  
Operating Profit Margin (%) 10.13 13.01 (22.14%)  
Net Profit Margin (%) 7.87 9.46 16.86%  
Return on Net Worth ( % ) 10.56 9.86 7.25%  

For and on behalf of Board 
Sd/- 

Dhirubhai H. Dand 
  Chairman  
DIN: 00284065 

  Dolatpara, August 13, 2022 
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Annexure - F
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance is based on preserving core beliefs and ethical business conduct while maintaining a strong 
commitment to maximize long-term stakeholder value. Your Company is focused towards bringing transparency in all its 
dealings, adhering to well-defined corporate values and leveraging the corporate resources for long term value creation. 

Your company implements best-in-class actions by adopting practices as mandated in or Securities and Exchange Board of 
) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 Listing 

Regulations  under corporate governance and by establishing procedures and systems to be fully compliant with it. Your 
Company believes in attainment of highest levels of transparency in all facets of its operations and maintains an unwavering 
focus on imbedding good Corporate Governance practices.  

Your Company is heading towards strengthening its governance principles to generate long-term value for its various 
stakeholders on a sustainable basis thus ensuring ethical and responsible leadership both at the Board and at the Management 
levels.  

The Company is in compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V and clauses 
(b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of Listing Regulations, as applicable, with 
regard to corporate governance. 

constitute the governance structure of the organization 
are covered in detail in this report. 

Governance Structure: 
The Governance structure of your company broadly comprises the Board of Directors and the Committees of the Board at the 
apex level and the Management structure at the operational level. This layered structure brings about a harmonious blend in 
governance as the Board sets the overall corporate objectives and gives direction and freedom to the Management to achieve 
these corporate objectives within a given framework, thereby bringing about an enabling environment for value creation 
through sustainable profitable growth.  

I. Board of Directors: 
a. The composition of the Board is in conformity with Regulation 17 and 17A of the Listing Regulations and provisions of 

As on March 31, 2022, the 
Company has ten Directors out of which 2(Two) are executive and 5 (Five) are Independent Directors comprising a 
woman director and rest 3 (three) are non-executive directors belonging to  group.  

b. The Board has an optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors with the Chairman being Non-
Executive Director belonging to promoter group and not less than fifty percent of the Board comprising Independent 
Directors including one Woman Independent Director. The Board reviews and approves strategy and oversees 
performance of the Management to ensure that the long-  

c. The Management of the Company is entrusted in the hands of skilled Key Managerial Personnel(s), headed by Shri Rajan 
R. Bambhania, Managing Director of the company. Alongside Managing Director, Shri Siddharth V. Vaishnav is 
sharing his expertise with the Company as an Executive Director. Mrs. Ruta A. Gardi is a woman Independent 
Director in the Board of Directors strengthening gender equality. 

d. The Independent Directors are professionals from diverse fields, possess requisite qualifications and experience which 

decision-making process. 

e.
Listing Regulations. All the Independent Directors have confirmed that they meet the criteria as mentioned in Regulation 
16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and Section 149(6) of the Act. The Independent Directors have also confirmed that 
they are not aware of any circumstance or situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or 
impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without any external influence. 
Further, the Board after taking these declaration/disclosures on record and acknowledging the veracity of the same, 
opined that the Independent Directors are persons of integrity and possess the relevant expertise and experience fulfils the 
conditions specified in the Listing Regulations and the Act for appointment of Independent Directors and are Independent 
of the Management.  

f. None of the Directors on the Board holds directorships in more than seven listed entities. None of the Independent 
Directors serves as an independent director in more than seven listed entities. Necessary disclosures regarding Committee 

26Corporate Governance report



 

positions in other public companies as on March 31, 2022 have been made by the Directors. None of the Directors is 
related to each other. Provided that, during the financial year, none of the independent directors resigned from the Board.

g. Five Board Meetings were held during the year under review and the gap between such two consecutive meetings did not 
exceed one hundred and twenty days or the relaxation period provided under the Act and Listing Regulation in this 
regard. The said meetings were held on June 09, 2021, June 12, 2021, July 28, 2021, October 30, 2021 and January 29, 
2022. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings and attendance of directors therein were provided separately 

 

h. The names and categories of the Directors on the Board, their attendance at board meetings held during the year under 
entities in which the Director is a director 

and the number of Directorships and Committee Chairmanships / Memberships held by them in other public limited 
companies as on March 31, 2022 are given herein below. Other directorships do not include directorships of private 
limited companies, foreign companies and companies registered under Section 8 of the Act. Further, none of them is a 
member of more than ten committees or chairman of more than five committees across all the public companies in which 
he / she is a Director. For the purpose of determination of limit of the Board Committees, only chairpersonship and 

26(1)(b) of Listing Regulations. 
 

S. 
No. 

Name of the directors, 
category and DIN 

No. of directorship in 
other public limited 
company 

Number of committee 
positions held in other 
public limited 
company 

No. of Board 
Meetings 
attended 
during the 
FY 2021-22 

Whether 
attended last 
AGM held 
on 
September 
18, 2021 

Directorship in 
other 
listed entity 
(Category of 
Directorship) Chairman Member Chairman Member 

Promoter & Promoter Group 

1 
Shri D. H. Dand 
Non-executive Director 
(DIN: 00284065) 

- - - - 5 Yes - 

2 
Shri R. R. Bambhania 
Executive Director 
(DIN : 00146211) 

- One - One 5 Yes 

Austin 
Engineering 
Company 
Limited 
Executive 
Director 

3 
Shri S. V. Vaishnav 
Executive Director 
(DIN : 00169472) 

- - - - 5 Yes - 

4 
Shri J.  S. Thanki 
Non-executive Director 
(DIN : 00146168) 

- - - - 3 Yes - 

5 
Shri H. N. Vadgama 
Non-executive Director 
(DIN : 00145992) 

One - - One 5 Yes 

Austin 
Engineering 
Company 
Limited 
Executive 
Director 

Independent Directors including Woman Director 

6 
Shri P. J. Doshi 
Non-executive Director 
(DIN : 08444518) 

- One - One 2 Yes 

Austin 
Engineering 
Company 
Limited 
Non-executive 
Director 

7 
Smt.  R. A. Gardi 
Non-executive Director 
(DIN: 08193238) 

- - - - 2 No - 

8 
Shri B. R. Sureja 
Non-executive Director 
(DIN: 00169883) 

- One Two - 2 Yes 

Austin 
Engineering 
Company 
Limited 
Non-executive 
Director 

9 
Shri K. D. Panchamiya 
Non-executive Director 
(DIN: 08193255) 

- - - - 2 Yes - 
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10
Shri R. S. Tilva
Non-executive Director 
(DIN:08193261) 

- - - - 2 No - 

i. During FY 2021-22, information as mentioned in Part A of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations, has been placed before 
the Board for its consideration. 
 

j. During FY 2021-22, one meeting of the Independent Directors was held on January 29, 2022. The Independent Directors, 
inter-alia, reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors, Board as a whole and Chairman of the Company, 
taking into account the views of Executive Directors and Non-Executive Directors. 
 

k. The Board annually reviews the compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company. 
 

l. Details of equity shares of the Company held by the Directors as on March 31, 2022 are given below: 
 

Name Designation with Category No. of equity shares held# 
Shri D. H. Dand Chairman, Non-executive Director 26,490 
Shri R. R. Bambhania Managing Director, Executive Director 58,700 
Shri S. V. Vaishnav Whole-time Director, Executive Director Nil 
Shri J.  S. Thanki Director, Non-executive Director 31,550 
Shri H. N. Vadgama Director, Non-executive Director 10,440 
Shri P. J. Doshi Independent Director, Non-executive Director Nil 
Smt. R. A. Gardi Independent Woman Director, Non-executive Director Nil 
Shri B. R. Sureja Independent Director, Non-executive Director Nil 
Shri K. D. Panchamiya Independent Director, Non-executive Director Nil 
Shri R. S. Tilva Independent Director, Non-executive Director 5 

# The Company has not issued any convertible instruments or securities. 
 

m. The Board has identified the following skills / expertise / competencies fundamental for the effective functioning of the 
Company which are currently available with the Board: 
- Experience : Person must have industrial experience preferably in peer industries. 
- Visionary : In the opinion of the Board, the person must carry visionary approach. 
- Ethical : Person has never been found guilty for violation of ethical practice. 
 
The Board has fixed primarily foregoing three skill sets to get eligibility for a person to be appointed as a Director of the 
Company and forenamed all those directors possess such set of skills / expertise / competencies. 
 

n. Size of the Company is medium and Independent directors were appointed in earlier financial years, thus, the Company 
need not required to impart any familiarization programs during the year. 
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d. Grievances redressal mechanism:
- Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is entrusted with the responsibility to redress the grievances of Stakeholders

accordingly, they have designated following hierarchy for direct accessing the responsible person: 

Primary contact person: Secondary contact person: Registrar & Share Transfer Agent 

Ms. Ekta Bhimani, Company 
Secretary & Compliance Officer 
Email: info@creative-cast.com 
Ph.: +91-285-2660040 / 2660224  
Address: 102, GIDC Phase-II, Rajkot 
Road, Dolatpara, Junagadh-362003, 
Gujarat. 

Shri Ashok Shekhat,  
Chief Financial Officer 
Email: als@creative-cast.com 
Ph.: +91-285-2660040 / 2660224  
Address: 102, GIDC Phase-II, 
Rajkot Road, Dolatpara, Junagadh-
362003, Gujarat. 

M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited 
Email: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.in 
Ph.: +91-22-4918 6260  
Toll Free: 1800 1020 878 
Fax : 022 - 4918 6060 
Address: C 101, 247 Park, L.B.S.Marg, 
Vikhroli (West), Mumbai  400083, 
Maharashtra. 

 
- Details of investor complaints received and redressed during F.Y. 2021-22 are as follows:  

Opening Balance Received during the year Resolved during the year Closing Balance 
Nil Nil Nil Nil 

 
e. Performance Evaluation Criteria for Independent Directors: 

The performance evaluation criteria adopted by the Board for Independent Directors are disclosed in the Boards  Report. 

III. Remuneration to Directors& Auditors 
a. Non-Executive and independent directors 

The Non-Executive and Independent Directors do not draw remuneration other than sitting fees. The Company pays the sitting 
fees to all the Non-Executive Directors at the rate of Rs. 10,000.00 for attending each Meeting of the Board, however, no fees 
paid to any members of committees for Committee meetings attended by them. The sitting fees paid to Non-Executive 
Directors for attending Board Meetings during the F.Y. 2021-22 are as follows:  

Shri D. H. Dand Shri J. S. Thanki Shri H. N. Vadgama Shri B. R. Sureja Shri K. D. Panchmiya 
Fees Rs. 50,000.00 Rs. 30,000.00 Rs.50,000.00 Rs. 20,000.00 Rs. 20,000.00 

Shri P. J. Doshi Shri R. S. Tilva Smt. Ruta A. Gardi 
Fees Rs. 20,000.00 Rs. 20,000.00 Rs. 20,000.00 

b. Executive Directors 
The remuneration paid to the Managing Director, Whole-time Director(s)of the Company are as recommended by the 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and was duly approved by the Board of Directors in its Meeting. The remuneration 
paid during the year to the Managing Director and Whole-time Director(s) is within the ceiling prescribed by provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 including Schedule V of the Act. The following remuneration was paid to the Directors during the year 
ended March 31, 2022: 

Name of the 
Director 

Designation 
Salary, 
PF contribution 
and perquisite 

Bonus Commission Total 

Shri R. R. 
Bambhania 

Managing 
Director 

17,26,685.00 2,77,885.00 Nil 20,04,570.00 

Shri S. V. Vaishnav Whole-time 
Director 

17,26,685.00 2,77,885.00 Nil 20,04,570.00 

Apart from remuneration, no other inter se transactions or pecuniary transaction between the executive directors and the 
Company. Provided further, the Company has neither fixed component and performance linked incentives nor issued any stock 
options to any Directors. 

c.  
M/s. J C Ranpura & Co., Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration No. 108647W) have been appointed as the Statutory 
Auditors of the Company for a period of five consecutive years commencing from the FY 2020-21. The particulars of payment 

 is provided in the financial statement. 

IV. General Body Meetings: 
Details of time, venue and special resolutions passed in the Annual General Meetings in last three Financial Years are given in 
Table below:  
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Year Date Venue Time  Special resolution passed 

2019 25/07/2019 

102, GIDC Phase-II, Rajkot 
Road, Dolatpara, Junagadh-
362003, Gujarat, India. 

11:00 AM 

1. Change of Designation and Continuation of
Directorship of Shri Vallabhbhai R. Vaishnav
(DIN 00415090);

2. Continuation of Directorship of Shri
Parsotambhai M. Nadpara (DIN 00440296);

3. Reappointment of Shri Rajan R. Bambhania as
ompany; 

4. Reappointment of Shri Siddharth V. Vaishnav
-

5. Reappointment of Shri Vishal D. Patel as the
-

2020 26/09/2020 No special resolution was passed in the AGM. 

2021 18/09/2021 

1. Payment of remuneration to Mr. Rajan R.
Bambhania, Managing Director of the
Company.

2. Payment of remuneration to Mr. Siddharth V.

Company.
Extra-o

No Extra-Ordinary General Meeting of the members was held during the FY 2021-22. 

Postal Ballot 
No postal ballot was conducted during the FY 2021-22. No Special Resolution is proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot 
as on the date of this report. 

V. Certifications:
CEO & CFO Certification
As required under Regulation 17(8) of Listing Regulations, Shri R. R. Bambhania, Managing Director and Shri Ashok 
Shekhat, Chief Financial Officer of the Company have certified to the Board that the Financial Statements for the year ended 
March 31, 2022
affairs and other matters as specified thereunder.
Confirmation of compliance with corporate governance requirements
The Board affirms that the Company is in compliance with Corporate Governance requirements specified in Regulation 17 to 27 
and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations. A certificate from Company 
Secretary in Practice certifying that the company is in compliance with foregoing clauses of corporate governance, during the FY 
2021-22, is annexed at the end of this Report
Certificate on Non-Debarment and Non-Disqualification of Directors
A certificate from Company Secretary in Practice certifying that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as on 
March 31, 2022 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of Companies by the 
Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such Statutory Authority, is annexed at the end of this Report .

VI. Website disclosures
In accordance with requirement of Listing Regulations, information about the Company is stored on the Company s website
i.e. www.creative-cast.com in a separate dedicated section titled Investor  and is updated regularly. 

Particulars Regulations Details 
Website link, if any, for 
details/ policy 

Related party transactions 

Regulation 23 
of Listing 
Regulations 
and as defined 
under 
the Act 

There are no material related 
party transactions during the year 
under review that have conflict 
with the interest of the Company. 
Transactions entered into with 
related parties during FY 2021-22 
were in the ordinary course of 

http://www.creative-
cast.com/Reports/PartyTransacti
onPolicy27062020.PDF 
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and were approved by the Audit 

approved policy for related party 
transactions is uploaded on the 
website of the Company. 

Details of non  compliance by 
the Company, penalty, strictures 
imposed on the Company by the 
stock exchange, or SEBI or any 
statutory authority on any 
matter related to capital markets 
during the last three financial 
years. 

Schedule V I 
10(b) 
to the Listing 
Regulations 

Nil (please refer Secretarial Audit 
report in Form MR-3) 

 

Whistle Blower Policy or Vigil 
Mechanism 

Regulation 22 
of  
Listing 
Regulations 

The Company has this Policy and 
has established the necessary vigil 
mechanism for directors and 
employees to report concerns 
about unethical behavior. No 
person has been denied access to 
the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee. The said policy has 
been uploaded on the website of 
the Company. 

http://www.creative-
cast.com/Reports/VigilM.PDF 

Compliance on mandatory and 
non-mandatory requirements 

Schedule V I 
10(d) 
to the Listing 
Regulations 

The Company is compliant with 
the applicable mandatory 
requirements of Listing 
Regulations except as depicted in 
Secretarial Audit report, as were 
applicable during the year under 
review. 

 

Subsidiary companies 

Regulation 24 
of 
the Listing 
Regulations 

The Company does not have any 
subsidiary or material subsidiary 
company, thus, it has not 
developed a policy for 

 

 

Policy on Determination of 
Materiality for Disclosures 

Regulation 30 
of  
Listing 
Regulations 

The Company has adopted this 
policy 

http://www.creative-
cast.com/Reports/POM.PDF 

Policy on Archival and 
Preservation of Documents 

Regulation 9 of  
Listing 
Regulations 

The Company has adopted this 
policy. 

http://www.creative-
cast.com/Reports/POA.PDF 

Reconciliation of Share Capital 
Audit Report 

Regulation 76 
of 
the Securities 
and 
Exchange 
Board of India 
(Depositories 
and 
Participants) 
Regulations, 
2018 
and SEBI 
Circular 
No D&CC / 
FITTC/ Cir- 
16/2002 dated 
December 31, 
2002 

A qualified practicing Company 
Secretary carried out a share 
capital audit to reconcile the total 
admitted equity share capital with 
the National Securities 

and the Central Depository 
Services (India) Limited 
(
listed equity share capital. The 
audit report confirms that the total 
issued / paid-up capital is in 
agreement with the total number 
of shares in physical form and the 
total number of dematerialized 
shares held with NSDL and 
CDSL. 

Web path:  
www.creative-cast.com> 
Investor Information >Share 
Capital Audit 

Code of Conduct Regulation 17 The members of the Board and Web path:  
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of
the Listing 
Regulations 

Senior Management Personnel 
have affirmed compliance with 
the Code of Conduct applicable to 
them during the year ended 
March 31, 2022. The Annual 
Report of the Company contains a 
certificate by the Managing 
Director, on the compliance 
declarations received from the 
members of the Board and Senior 
Management. 

www.creative-cast.com> 
Investor Information >Code of 
Conduct 

Terms of Appointment of 
Independent Directors 

Regulation 46 
of  
Listing 
Regulations 
and Section 
149 read with 
Schedule IV of 
the Act 

Terms and conditions of 
appointment / 
re-appointment of Independent 
Directors is available on the 

 

http://www.creative-
cast.com/Reports/TORID.PDF 

Code for Prevention of Insider-
Trading practices 

Regulation 8 of 
SEBI 
(Prohibition of 
Insider 
Trading) 
Regulations, 
2015 

The Company has formulated and 

and Procedures for Fair 
Disclosure of Unpublished Price 

of Conduct for Prevention of 
Insider Trading in Securities of 
the company for its designated 
employees. Said Code uploaded 
on the website of the Company. 

http://www.creative-
cast.com/Reports/ 
Code of Insider Trading 
Revised.PDF 

VII.Other Disclosures: 

i. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013: 
The Company has complied with provisions relating to the constitution of Internal Complaints Committee under the Sexual 
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

In terms Schedule V read with Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, disclosures relating to complaints during 
the year under review is as follows:  
a. number of complaints filed during the Financial Year 2021-22: Nil  
b. number of complaints disposed of during the Financial Year 2021-22: Nil  
c. number of complaints pending as on end of the Financial Year 2021-22: Nil 

ii. Disclosure of Accounting Treatment in preparation of Financial Statements 
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles in India (Indian GAAP) and comply with the Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. The 
Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS). Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with Ind AS as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under 
Section 133 of the Act and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

iii. Details of clauses of Listing Regulations do not apply / call for further information: 
The Company do not have / not require to provide such information as mandated under Schedule V I 10(g),(h), and (j) to the 
Listing Regulations. 

VIII.Means of communication  
Your Company, from time to time and as may be required, communicates with its shareholders and investors through multiple 
channels of communications such as dissemination of information on the website of the Bombay Stock Exchange, Publication 
in Western-times Newspaper (both Gujarati & English editions), the Annual Reports and uploading relevant information in 
investor section of its website i.e.www.creative-cast.com. The quarterly, half yearly and yearly results are published in local 
daily respectively. These are not sent individually to the Shareholders. The unaudited quarterly financial results are announced 
within Forty-five days of the close of each quarter, other than the last quarter. The audited annual financial results are 
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Share Price BSE CLOSING

announced within sixty days from the end of the Financial Year or within extended time period, if any, as provided under the 
Listing Regulations. The aforesaid financial results are announced to the Stock Exchange within the statutory time period from 
the conclusion of the Board Meeting(s) at which these are considered and approved. Your Company discloses to the Stock 

Listing Regulations including material information having a bearing on the performance/ operations of the Company and other 
BSE Corporate Compliance & 

Listing Centre (Listing Centre).

IX. Shareholder Information

Annual General Meeting for FY 2021-22:
Date : September 26, 2022
Time : 11:00 AM
Venue : 102, GIDC Phase-II, Rajkot Road, Dolatpara, Junagadh-362003, Gujarat, India.

As required under Regulation 36(3) of the Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard 2, particulars of Directors seeking re-
appointment at this AGM are given in the Annexure to the Notice of this AGM.

Financial Calendar:
Year ending : March 31
AGM in : September
Dividend 
Payment

: The final dividend, if approved, shall be paid/credited on or before October 10, 2022.

Date of Book Closure / Record Date:  As mentioned in the Notice of this AGM.
Listing on Stock Exchanges: BSE Limited, P. J. Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai 400001.
Annual listing fee for the financial year 2021-22 has been paid by the Company to BSE Ltd.
Stock Codes / Symbol: BSE (532540)
Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company: L27100GJ1985PLC008286

Market Price Data:
High, Low (based on daily closing prices) and 
number of equity shares traded during each month 
in the FY 2021-22 on BSE:
Note:

Address for correspondence:

concerning to the Shares/Securities or dividend of the Company and other matters may escalated before the Company 
Secretary of the Company 

Plant location: 102, GIDC Phase-II, Rajkot Road, Dolatpara, Junagadh-362003, Gujarat, India.

Month

BSE Ltd.

High 
(Rs.)

Low 
(Rs.)

Total 
no. of 

Shares 
traded

Total 
number 

of 
trades

April, 21 369.80 315.60 806 109
May, 21 360.00 342.00 332 18
June, 21 370.00 329.35 6,087 245
July, 21 383.25 330.00 17,661 593
Aug., 21 480.95 375.00 18,276 794
Sept.,21 455.00 352.50 12,721 920
Oct.,21 437.95 331.80 3,147 316
Nov.,21 430.30 348.05 24,133 701
Dec.,21 408.55 321.00 6,564 354
Jan.,22 392.75 341.00 9,237 562
Feb.,22 388.00 324.00 6,323 408
March,22 408.00 301.25 8,707 584

Performance of the share price of the Company in comparison to 
the BSE Sensex:
(Chart represents closing price of BSE Sensex and CCL Share price 
on monthly basis)
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Share Transfer System:
In terms of Regulation 40(1) of Listing Regulations, as amended, securities can be transferred only in dematerialized form 
w.e.f. April 01, 2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. Members holding shares 
in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to dematerialized form. Transfers of equity shares in 
electronic form are effected through the depositories with no involvement of the Company. The Directors and certain 
Company officials (including Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary) are authorised by the Board severally to 
approve transfers, which are noted at subsequent Board Meetings. 

Dematerialization of shares and liquidity:  

dematerialized 
form by promoters and promoter group and 89.53% of equity shares held by public is in dematerialized form as per the data as 
on March 31, 2022. 

Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: 
The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments in the past and hence, as on March 31, 
2022, the Company does not have any reportable outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments. 

Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities:  
The Company does not deal in commodities and hence the disclosure pursuant to SEBI Circular dated November 15, 2018 is 
not required to be given. 

Equity shares in the suspense account: Nil 

Transfer of unclaimed / unpaid amounts to the Investor Education and Protection Fund:  During the financial year 2021-
22, the Company has not transferred any sum in the Investor Education and Protection Fund. 

No Suspension of trading: 
During the financial year 2021-22, no such instances occurred resultant trading in the equity shares of the Company been 
suspended. 

Credit ratings: 
During the financial year 2021-22, the Company has not obtained any credit ratings as it has not required to do so. 

Distribution of shareholding & Shareholding pattern (as at March 31, 2022): 

No. of Equity Shares held 
No. of 

Shareholders 
% of Total 

Shareholders 
Shares 

% of Total 
Share Capital 

1  5000 749 93.86 1,18,885 9.15 
5001  10000 12 1.50 80,427 6.19 
10001  20000 15 1.88 2,24,019 17.23 
20001  30000 8 1.00 2,08,224 16.02 
30001  40000 5 0.63 1,65,109 12.70 
40001  50000  4 0.50 1,74,322 13.41 
50001  100000 4 0.50 2,22,914 17.15 
100001 and above 1 0.13 1,06,100 8.16 
Total  798 100.00 13,00,000 100 

SN Category 
Number of equity 
shares held 

Percentage of 
holding 

1 Individual Promoters (Indian) 9,74,459 74.96 
2 Individual Public (Indian) 3,00,080 23.08 
3 HUF 6,509 0.50 
4 LLP 89 0.01 
5 Non-Resident (Non Repatriable) 57 0.00 
6 Non-Resident Indian (NRI) 1,031 0.08 
7 Bodies Corporate 17,774 1.37 
8 Clearing Members 1 0.00 
 Total 13,00,000 100.00 
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CEO / CFO CERTIFICATE
To,
The Board of Directors 
Creative Castings Limited 

1. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash
ended March 31, 2022 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:
i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be

misleading;
ii. 

accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.
2. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are

3. We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have evaluated the

deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls.
4. We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

i. there are no significant changes in internal controls over financial reporting during the year;
ii. there are no significant changes in accounting policies during the year; and
iii. there are no instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware.

Sd/- 
Ashok Shekhat 
Chief Financial Officer 

Sd/- 
R. R. Bambhania  
Managing Director  
Dolatpara, August 13, 2022 

DECLARATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 

I hereby confirm that the Company has obtained from all the members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel, the 
21-22.

NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 
C E R T I F I C A T E 

(Pursuant to clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of LODR) 

UDIN: F009000D000790946 

In pursuance of sub clause (i) of clause 10 of Part C of Schedule V of The Securities and Exchange Board of India ('SEBI') 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015; ('LODR') in respect of Creative Castings Limited (CIN: 
L27100GJ1985PLC008286) I hereby certify that: 

On the basis of my verification of Directors Identification Number (DIN) status of each Directors of the Creative Castings 
Limited (CIN: L27100GJ1985PLC008286) on the online portal of Ministry of Corporate Affairs (i.e.www.mca.gov.in) and on 
the basis of written representation/declaration received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of Directors, as on 
March 31, 2022, none of the directors on the board of the company has been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 
continuing as director of companies by the SEBI / Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

For, M. Buha & Co. 
Company Secretaries 
Sd/- 
Mayur Buha 
[Proprietor] 
FCS No. 9000, C. P. No. 10487 
Vadodara, August 13, 2022 
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Sd/- 
R. R. Bambhania  
Managing Director  
Dolatpara, August 13, 2022 



 

UDIN: F009000D000790957

To,  
The Members, 
Creative Castings Limited  
102, GIDC Phase-II,  
Rajkot Road,  
Dolatpara, Junagadh. 
Gujarat, India.  

I have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by Creative Castings Limited (CIN: 
L27100GJ1985PLC008286) ('the Company'), as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub regulation (2) 
of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations") for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.  

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination was 
limited to the review of procedures and implementation thereof adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance of the 
conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the said Regulations. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the 
future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the Company.  

On the basis of my findings from the examination of the records produced and explanations and information furnished to me 
and the representation made by the Management, I hereby certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of 
Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the financial year ended March 31, 2022.  

For, M. Buha & Co. 
Company Secretaries 

Sd/- 

Mayur Buha 
[Proprietor] 
FCS No. 9000, C. P. No. 10487 
Vadodara, August 13, 2022 
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To,
The Members of, 
M/s. Creative Castings Limited,
Junagadh. 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone IND AS Financial Statements 
Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of M/s. Creative Castings Limited, Junagadh 
as at 31st March, 2022, the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to financial statements, including a summary of significant 

 financial 
 

 
2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 

Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 
of the Act read with the 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 st March, 2022, the profit, 
total comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 
 

Basis for Opinion 
 

1. We conducted our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the 

independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under and we have fulfilled our other ethical 

we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements. 

Key Audit Matters 

1. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a 
separate opinion on these matters. We have determined that there is no any Key Audit Matters to be communicated in our 
report. 
 

 

1. 
comprises the information included 

include the standalone Ind AS financial statements and our aud  
 

2. Our opinion on the standalone financial Ind AS statements does not cover the other information and we do not express 
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 
 

3. In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
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4. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there isa material misstatement of this other information; we 
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility for the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

1.  Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, 
financial performance, total comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with 
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and 
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of 
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the 
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and 
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 

2. In preparing the standalone Ind AS financi
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no 
realistic alternative but to do so. 
 

3.  
 

Standalone Financial Statements 
 

1. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free 
es our opinion. 

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs 
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of 
users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements. 
 

2. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also: 
 

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS standalone financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement 
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our 
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosures made by management. 

  based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast 

report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 

or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events 
in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 
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3. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be 
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in(i)planning the scope of our audit work and in 
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statements. 
 

4. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of 
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit. 
 

5. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards. 
 

6. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most 
significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit 

matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 
such communication. 
 

Other Matters 
 

1. The Company has postponed recognition of benefit arising from export made during the year from accrual to cash basis. 
We are unable to quantify details of such deferral and therefore we are not modifying our report. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1.  
in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
 

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 
[a] We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 

were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
[b] In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from 

our examination of those books. 
[c] The Company does not have any branch and therefore, this clause is not applicable. 
[d]  The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of 

changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

[e] In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under Section 
133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

[f] There are no such financial transactions or matters which have any adverse effect on the functioning of the 
Company; 

[g] On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2022 taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022from being appointed as a director in 
terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

[h] There are no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks relating to the maintenance of accounts and other 
matters connected therewith. 

[i] With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in -
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the  internal financial controls over 
financial reporting. 

[j]  With respect to the other matters to be included in  Report in accordance with the requirements of 
section 197(16) of the Act, as amended: 
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(a) In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration 
paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the 
Act. 

[k] with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information and 
according to the explanations given to us: 

 
(a) The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial statements. 
(b) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts; for which there were any 

material foreseeable losses. 
(c) There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 

Protection Fund by the Company. 
(d) 

43(xvi)(a) of the financial statements attached herewith, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 
(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in 
any other person/s or entity/ies including forei
recoded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediaries shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

 
(e) 

43(xvi)(b) of the financial statements attached herewith, no funds have been received by the Company from any 

recoded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 

or provide any guarantee, security or the like on the behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 
(f) Based on the audits procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that representations under sub-
clauses (i) and (ii) of clause (e) of Rule 11 contain any material mis-statement. 

(g) The final dividend paid by the Company during the current financial year in respect of the same declared for the 
previous financial year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to payment of 
dividend. 

 
For J.C. Ranpura & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 108647W 

Place: Rajkot 
Date: 29.05.2022                  Sd/- 

 
Mehul J. Ranpura 

Partner 
Membership No.128453 

UDIN: 22128453ANROYQ5258 
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In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company as certificate and the books of account 
made available to us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that, in our opinion:

(i) (a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of property, plant, and equipment. 

 (B) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

(b) These property, plant, and equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year at 
reasonable intervals. Discrepancies, having regard to size of the Company, considered as minor, were noticed on 
such verification and the said discrepancies were appropriately recognized in the financial statements by way of 
writing off of its assets.t 

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the 
lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee) disclosed in the financial statements are held in the 
name of the Company. 

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant, and Equipment (including Right of Use assets) or intangible 
asset or both during the year, and hence, this clause is not applicable to the Company. 

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the 
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder. 

   

(ii) (a) The inventory has been physically verified during the year by the management and in our opinion, the coverage 
and procedure of such verification are appropriate. As reported to us, discrepancies of 10% or more in the 
aggregate for each class of inventories were not noticed. 

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limit in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from 
banks or financial institution on the basis of security of current assets, and therefore, this clause is not applicable 
for the year under audit. 

   

(iii) The Company has not, during the year, made investment in, provided any guarantee or security, or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or any other 
parties. 

(a) As the Company has not, during the year, provided loans, or provided advances in the nature of loans or stood 
guarantee, or provided security to any other entity, this clause is not applicable for the year under audit. 

(b) As the Company has not, during the year, made investments, or provided guarantee, or given any security, this 
clause is not applicable for the year under audit. 

(c) As the Company has not, during the year, granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans, this clause is not 
applicable for the year under audit. 

(d) As the Company has not granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans, this clause is not applicable for the 
year under audit. 

(e) As the Company has not granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans, this clause is not applicable for the 
year under audit. 

(f) As the Company has not granted any loans and advances in the nature of loans, this clause is not applicable for the 
year under audit. 

   

(iv) The company has complied with section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, wherever applicable. 

   

(v) The Company has not accepted deposits, and therefore this clause is not applicable for the year under audit. 

   

(vi) We have been informed that the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 
148(1) of the Act for the Company. However, the Company is required to maintain its costs records from the financial 
year 2022-  turnover for the financial year was more than the amount specified under Rule 3 
of the Companies (Costs Records and Audit) Rules, 2014. 

   

(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax, provident 
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-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added 
tax, cess, and any other statutory dues to the appropriate authorities. No undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
provident  customs, value 
added tax, goods and services tax, cess, and other material statutory dues were in arrears as at 31stMarch 2022 for 
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of income tax, sales tax, 
service tax, wealth tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, goods and services tax, and cess which 
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. 

   

(viii) There were no transactions, not recorded in the books of account, which have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessment under the Income-tax Act, 1961. 

   

(ix) (a) The Company has not taken any loans or other borrowings and therefore, this clause is not applicable for the year 
under audit. 

(b) As certified by the management of the Company and as per books of account produced before us, the Company is 
not a declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender. 

(c) As the Company did not avail any term loan, this clause is not applicable for the year under audit. 

(d) As per books of account produced before us, the Company has not utilized short-term funds for long term 
purposes, and therefore, this clause is not applicable for the year under audit. 

(e) As certified by the management of the Company and on the basis of books of account examined by us, the 
Company has not taken any loans from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligation of its 
subsidiaries, associates, or joint ventures. 

(f) As certified by the management of the Company, the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge 
of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures, or associate companies. 

   

(x) (a) On the basis of the records examined by us, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or 
further public offer (including debt instruments), and therefore, this clause is not applicable. 

(b) On the basis of our verification of records and information furnished to us, the company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year 
under review and therefore, the requirement of sections 42 and 62 of the Companies Act, 2013 is not required to 
be complied with. 

   

(xi) (a) On the basis of our examination of the books of account and other relevant records and information made 
available to us, prima facie, we have not noticed any fraud (i.e. intentional material misstatements resulting from 
fraudulent financial reporting and misappropriations of assets) on or by the company, during the year. Further, the 
management has represented to us that no fraud by the company or any fraud on the company by its officers or 
employees has been noticed or reported during the year. However, we are unable to determine/verify as to 
whether any such reporting has been made during the year or not. 

(b) The auditor of the company has not filed any report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 
2013 in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

(c) We have not received any whistle-blower complaints during the year under audit. 

   

(xii) (a) This clause is not applicable to the Company as the Company is not Nidhi Company. 

(b) This clause is not applicable to the Company as the Company is not Nidhi Company. 

   

(xiii) All transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 where 
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements etc. as required by the applicable Indian 
Accounting Standards. 

   

(xiv) (a) As certified by the management of the Company, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with 
the size and nature of its business. 

(b) We have duly considered the reports of Internal Auditor for the period under audit. 
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(xv) In our opinion and according to the information and the explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into 
non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. 

   

(xvi) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and the explanations given to us, the Company is not required to 
be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 

(b) As certified by the management of the Company, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or 
Housing Finance activities. 

(c) This clause is not applicable to the Company. 

(d) This clause is not applicable to the Company. 

   

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year under audit and in the immediately preceding financial 
year. 

   

(xviii) This clause is not applicable for the financial year under audit. 

   

(xix) We are of the opinion that no material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is capable 
of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date. 

   

(xx) (a) This clause is not applicable to the Company for the financial year under audit. 

(b) This clause is not applicable to the Company for the financial year under audit. 

   

(xxi) This clause is not applicable to the Company for the financial year under audit. 

For J.C. Ranpura & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 108647W 
Place: Rajkot 
Date: 29.05.2022                  Sd/- 

 
Mehul J. Ranpura 

Partner 
Membership No.128453 

UDIN: 22128453ANROYQ5258 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 
 

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of M/s. Creative Castings Limited, Junagadh 
st March, 2022 in conjunction with my / our audit of the standalone financial 

statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Financial Controls: 

control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, 

rrors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the Companies Act, 2013. 
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Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

ed by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an 
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and 
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if 
such controls operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material 
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed 

t 
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting: 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that 
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors 
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, 
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting: 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. 
Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the 
risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion: 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March, 2022 based 
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For J.C. Ranpura & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 108647W 
Place: Rajkot 
Date: 29.05.2022                  Sd/- 

 
Mehul J. Ranpura 

Partner 
Membership No.128453 

UDIN: 22128453ANROYQ5258 
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BALANCESHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees unless stated to be otherwise)

Particulars Notes
As at

March 31, 2022 
As at

March 31, 2021 

[A] ASSETS      
[1] Non-current assets      

 Property, Plant and Equipment 4 631.69  634.82  
 Other Intangibles assets 5 1.97  2.87  
 Financial assets      
 Investments 6 8.69  8.26  
 Other non-current assets 9 220.42  196.68  
 Total non-current assets  862.78  842.63  
        

[2] Current assets      
 Inventories 10 718.54  514.92  
 Financial assets      
 Investments 11 816.20  1,131.30  
 Trade receivables 12 815.56  653.66  
 Cash and cash equivalents 13 265.84  55.13  
 Other financial asset 7 13.35  9.71  
 Other current assets 9 158.23  119.34  
 Total current assets  2,787.72  2,484.05  
 Total assets  3,650.49  3,326.69  
        

[B] EQUITY AND LIABILITIES      
[1] Equity      

 Equity Share Capital 14 130.00  130.00  
 Other Equity 15 2,976.71  2,740.75  
 Total equity  3,106.71  2,870.75  
        

[2] Non-current liabilities      
 Financial liabilities      
 Borrowings  -   -   
 Provisions 17 9.07  9.58  
 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8 87.13  92.67  
 Other non-current liabilities 16 8.03  7.54  
 Total non-current liabilities  104.23  109.79  
        

[3] Current liabilities      
 Financial Liabilities      
 Trade payables 18 200.23  142.75  
 A. Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and      
 B. Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises.      
 Other financial liabilities 19 38.38  37.81  
 Other current liabilities 20 23.63  5.39  
 Short term provisions 17 63.36  55.10  
 Current tax liabilities  113.96  105.10  
 Total current liabilities  439.55  346.15  
 Total equity and liabilities  3,650.49  3,326.69  
        

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts 1 to 42   

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For J C Ranpura & Co. Sd/-  Sd/- 
Firm Registration No. 108647W Dhirubhai H. Dand  Rajan R. Bambhania 
Chartered Accountants Chairman Sd/- Managing Director 
Sd/- DIN: 00284065 Siddharth V.  Vaishnav DIN: 00146211 
Mehul J. Ranpura  Executive Director  
Partner Sd/- DIN: 00169472 Sd/- 
M. No.128453 Ekta H. Bhimani  Ashok L. Shekhat 
UDIN: 22128453ANROYQ5258 Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer 

   
Place:  Rajkot Place:  Junagadh   
Date:   29.05.2022 Date:   28.05.2022   
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees unless stated to be otherwise)

Particulars Notes 
Year ended 

March 31, 2022
Year ended 

March 31, 2021
I Revenue      
II Revenue from operations 21  4,170.44  2,992.93  
III Other income 22 102.53          129.58  

            4,272.96                3,122.51  
IV Expenses      

 Cost of raw material and components consumed 23 (a)               1,874.12                 1,093.26  
 Purchases of traded goods 23 (b)                            -                       -   
 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and traded goods 23 (c) (135.65) 13.66 
 Employee benefits expense 24                  492.68                442.65  
 Finance costs 25                      0.49                        0.68  
 Depreciation and amortisation expense 26                    59.24                      65.69  
 Other expenses 27          1,560.20              1,117.76  
               3,851.09              2,733.71  

V Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax             421.87                  388.81  
VI Exceptional items                            -                            -   
VII Profit before Tax from Continuing Operations              421.87                 388.81  
VIII Tax expense       

 Current Tax                  113.96                    105.10  
 Prior Year Tax                  (0.05)                  (2.93) 
 Deffered Tax 8                  (20.13)                    3.41  
 MAT Credit                        -                     -   
                      93.78                  105.58  

XI Profit (Loss) for the period from Continuing Operations                  328.10                  283.23  
X Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations                            -                          -   
XI Tax expense of discontinued operations                       -                          -   
XII Profit/(loss) from discontinued operations (after tax)                          -                        -   
XIII Net profit for the year                328.10                    283.23  
XIV Other Comprehensive Income      

 A i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit and loss  28                   52.45                   75.02  
     ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss                 (14.59)                   (20.87) 
 B i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                        -                        -   
     ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss                         -                       -   
 Other Comprehensive Income for the year                37.86                      54.15  

XV Total Comprehensive Income for the year               365.96                    337.38  
       

XVI Earnings per equity share      
  29                    25.24                   21.79  
                      25.24                    21.79  
        

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts   
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 

1 to 42  

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For J C Ranpura & Co. Sd/-  Sd/- 
Firm Registration No. 108647W Dhirubhai H. Dand  Rajan R. Bambhania 
Chartered Accountants Chairman Sd/- Managing Director 
Sd/- DIN: 00284065 Siddharth V.  Vaishnav DIN: 00146211 
Mehul J. Ranpura  Executive Director  
Partner Sd/- DIN: 00169472 Sd/- 
M. No.128453 Ekta H. Bhimani  Ashok L. Shekhat 
UDIN: 22128453ANROYQ5258 Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer 

   
Place:  Rajkot Place:  Junagadh   
Date:   29.05.2022 Date:   28.05.2022   
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
(All amounts are in Lakhs of Indian rupees unless stated to be otherwise)

 
Particulars 

Year ended 
March 31, 2022

Year ended 
March 31, 2021

A CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
 Profit before tax 421.87  388.81  
 Adjustments for:     
 Depreciation and amortisation expense                           59.24                            65.69  
 Gain on disposal of fixed assets (net)                                 -                                   -   
 Deferred income on security deposit received                            (0.14)                            (0.14) 
 Gain on fair valuation of financial instruments (net)                          (36.28)                          (25.21) 
 Interest income                            (1.19)                          (10.86) 
 Finance costs                             0.49                              0.68  
 Provision for doubtful advances/receivables                             1.64                              0.20  
 Operating profit before working capital changes                         445.63                          419.16  
 Movement in working capital     
 Adjustments for (Increase)/Decrease in Current Assets     
 Inventories                        (203.62)                           24.50  
 Other financial assets                            (3.64)                             2.02  
 Other current assets                          (38.89)                           33.40  
 Other non-current assets                          (23.73)                          (18.44) 
 Trade and other receivables                        (163.54)                          (20.21) 
 Adjustments for Increase/(Decrease) Current Liabilities                                   -   
 Other financial liabilities                             0.57                             (3.38) 
 Current provision                           53.04                             (0.60) 
 Non-current provision                            (0.51)                             0.45  
 Other current liabilities                           18.24                              3.05  
 Other non-current liabilities                             0.49                              0.49  
 Trade and other payables                           57.48                         (175.72) 
 Cash flow from operating activities post working capital changes                         141.52                          264.71  
 Income tax paid (net)                        (105.05)                          (85.61) 
 Net cash flow from operating activities (A)                           36.47                          179.09  
      

B CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     
 Purchase of fixed assets (including capital work-in-progress)                          (55.22)                          (31.33) 
 Proceeds from sale/disposal of fixed assets     
 Purchase of intangible assets                                 -                              (0.20) 
 (Purchase)/sale of investments                         358.62                         (106.65) 
 Assets held for sale     
 Movement in fixed deposits (net)                                 -     
 Interest/Dividend received                             1.33                            11.01  
 Net cash flows used in investing activities (B)                         304.73                         (127.17) 
      

C CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     
    
 Proceeds from long-term borrowings (net)     
 Repayment of short-term borrowings (net)     
 Movement in retained earnings     
 Finance cost paid                            (0.49)                            (0.68) 
 Dividend paid (including tax)                        (130.00)                        (130.00) 
 Net cash used in financing activities (C)                         (130.49)                        (130.68) 
      
 Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)                         210.71                           (78.76) 
 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year                           55.13                          133.89  
 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year                         265.84                            55.13  

       

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For J C Ranpura & Co. Sd/-  Sd/- 
Firm Registration No. 108647W Dhirubhai H. Dand  Rajan R. Bambhania 
Chartered Accountants Chairman Sd/- Managing Director 
Sd/- DIN: 00284065 Siddharth V.  Vaishnav DIN: 00146211 
Mehul J. Ranpura  Executive Director  
Partner Sd/- DIN: 00169472 Sd/- 
M. No.128453 Ekta H. Bhimani  Ashok L. Shekhat 
UDIN: 22128453ANROYQ5258 Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer 

   
Place:  Rajkot Place:  Junagadh   
Date:   29.05.2022 Date:   28.05.2022   
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Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31st March 2022 
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND NOTES TO ACCOUNTS FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 
ON 31ST MARCH, 2022.

1. GENERAL INFORMATION 
1. limited company domiciled in India. The Company is engaged in 

manufacturing and selling of all types of Steel and Alloy Steel Investment Castings. The company is also engaged in 
generating of power from wind energy. The Casting Manufacturing unit of the Company is situated at G.I.D.C. Estate, Phase  
II, Rajkot Road, Dolatpara, Junagadh- 362003. The company caters to both domestic and international markets. The 

 

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
1. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE 

1.
Companies (Indian accounting standard) Rules, 2015 as amended and notified under section 133 of the companies act 2013 

 and other relevant provisions of the Act. The aforesaid financial statements have been approved by the Board of 
Directors in the meeting held on 28th May, 2022. These financial statements are prepared and presented in Indian Rupees and 
rounded-off to the nearest rupee, except when otherwise stated. 

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND PRESENTATION 
1. These financial statements have been prepared and presented on the accrual basis of accounting under historical cost 

convention or fair values as per the requirement of Ind AS prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time. 

2. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services. Fair value is 
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another 
valuation technique in estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes in to account the Characteristics of 
the asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the 
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these financial statements is determined on such a 
basis, except for share based payment transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 102, leasing transactions that are within 
the scope of Ind AS 116, and measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net 
realizable value, in Ind AS 2 or value in use in Ind AS 36. 

3. In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorized into level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree 
to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows. 

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the 
measurement date. 
Level 2inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly or indirectly. 
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

4. The financial statements are presented to the nearest lakhs of INR, the functional currency of the company. The accounting 
policies are applied consistently to the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have been 
classified as current or non-current as per the  normal operating cycle or 12 months or other criteria as set out in the 
Schedule III to the Companies Act 2013. Based on the nature of its business, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle 
to be 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and liabilities. 

3. REVENUE RECOGNITION 
1. Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the revenue can 

be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company 
recognizes revenue on sale of products, net of discount, rebate, returns etc. 

The following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized. 
Sale of goods 

2. Revenue from sales of goods is recognized when all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been 
passed to the buyer, usually on delivery of the goods. Sales is measured on the basis of contracted price, after deduction of any 
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trade discounts, volume rebates and any taxes or duties collected on behalf of government such as of Goods and Service Tax 
(G.S.T.) etc.

Interest
3. Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the effective interest 

rate (EIR). Interest income is included under the   

Dividend Income 
4.  dividend is established by the reporting date. 

Other Income 
5. Other income is recognized on accrual basis provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company 

and the amount of income can be measured reliably. 

4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 
1. The cost of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, any import duties and other taxes (other than those 

subsequently recoverable from the tax authorities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its 
intended use, including relevant borrowing costs for qualifying assets and any expected costs of decommissioning, net of any 
trade discounts and rebates. Expenditure incurred after the property, plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as 
repairs and maintenance, are charged to the Statement of profit and loss in the period in which the costs are incurred unless 
such expenditure results in a significant increase in the future benefits of the concerned asset. 

2. An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or on retirement, when no future economic benefits 
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of 
property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset and is recognized in statement of profit and loss. 

3. Property, plant and equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 
impairment losses, if any. 

4. The company has elected to continue with the carrying value for all of its property, plant and equipment as recognized in the 
financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. 1 April-2016, measured as per the previous GAAP and use that as 
its deemed cost as at the date of transition. 

5. Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as 
-  

6. Depreciation commences when the assets are ready for their intended use. Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, 
or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of 
assets (other than properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using straight-line method as 
per the useful life prescribed in schedule II to the companies Act,2013. In respect of additions to property, plant and 
equipment, depreciation has been charged on pro rata basis. Freehold land is not depreciated. 

7. The company reviews the residual value, useful lives and depreciation method annually and, if current estimates differ from 
previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate on a prospective basis. 

5. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
1. Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and 

accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is recognized on a Straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The 
estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes 
in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately 
are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

2. An item of intangible assets is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. Any gain or loss arising on Derecognition of the asset is included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is 
derecognized. 

3. For transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with carrying value of all its intangible assets recognized as of 1 
April 2016 (transition date) measured as per the previous GAAP as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its 
deemed cost as of transition date. 

4. Intangible Assets amortized as follows: 
Computer Software is amortized over the useful life estimated by the management over a period of 5 years. 

6. IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
1. At the end of each reporting period, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to 

determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where it is not 
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possible to estimate the recoverable amount of individual assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate 
assets are also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-
generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

2. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least 
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. 

3. Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future 
cash flows are discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time 
value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. 

4. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying 
amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized 
immediately in the statement of Profit and Loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the 
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. 

5. 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognized. 

7. LEASES 
1. 

contract is or contains a lease, at the inception of Contract. A contract is, or contains a lease the contract conveys the right to 
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: 
the contract involves the use of an identified assets; 
the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset through the period of the lease; and 
the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset. 

2. Leases are classified as finance lease whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership to the lessee. All other lease is classified as operating leases. 

Where the company is lessor 
3. Rental income from operating leases is recognized on straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct cost, 

if any, incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and 
recognized on straight-line basis over the lease term. 

Where the company is lessee 
4. Payments made under operating lease are charged to the statement of Profit and Loss on straight line basis over the period of 

the lease determined in the respective agreements which is representative of the time pattern in which benefit derived from the 
use of the leased asset. Where the rentals are structured solely to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate 

, such increases are recognized in the year in which such benefits accrue. 
5. Leases where the company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. 

Finance Leases are capitalized at the inception of the lease at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present 
value of the minimum lease payments. 

6. Each lease payment is apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding liability. The outstanding 
liability is included in other long-term borrowings. The finance charge is charged to the statement of profit and loss over the 
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period. 

8. INVENTORIES 
1. Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost comprises of purchase price, applicable taxes, less rebates, 

discounts and conversion costs and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories in to their present location and condition. 
Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and 
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

2. Stores and spares which do not meet the definition of property, plant and equipment are accounted as inventories. 
3. Inventories are valued at: 

Inventory Method 
Raw materials Weighted Average Cost 
Stock - in - process Weighted Average Cost 
Finished goods Weighted Average Cost 
Stores and spares Net Realisable Value 
Fuel Weighted Average Cost 
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
1. In respect of defined contribution plan the company makes the stipulated contributions to provident fund and pension fund, in

respect of employees to the respective authorities under which the liability of the company is limited to the extent of the 
contribution.

2. The liability for gratuity, considered as defined benefit, is determined actuarially using the projected unit credit method, with 
actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains 
and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets (excluding interest), is 
reflected immediately in the statement of financial position with a charge or credit recognized in other comprehensive income 
in the period in which they occur. Re-measurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in 
retained earnings and will not be reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognized in period of a plan amendment. 
Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset. 
Defined benefit costs are categorized as follows: 

 
 Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements); 
 Net interest expense or income; and 
 Re-measurement 

 
3. The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or 

 gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs. 
4. The retirement benefit obligation recognized in the statement of financial position represents the actual deficit or surplus in the 

Co
benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans. 

5. A liability for a termination benefit is recognized at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the 
termination benefit and when the entity recognizes any related restructuring costs. 

6. A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in the 
period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that 
service. Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the 
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service. 

 
10. TAXATION  
1. Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 
 

Current Tax 
2. Current Tax is the amount of tax payable based on the taxable profit for the year as determined in accordance with the 

applicable tax rates and the provisions of the India Income Tax Act,1961. 
 

Deferred Tax 
3. Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 

statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally 
recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary 
differences can be utilized. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from 
the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. 

4. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each annual reporting period and reduced to the extent that 
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. 

5. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is 
settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period. 

6. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against 
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

7. Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they are related to item that are 
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. 

8. Minimum Alternate tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of 
adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an asset if there is convincing evidence that the company will pay 
normal income tax. Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that future 
economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company. 
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11. FOREIGN CURRENCIES
1. The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic environment in which it operates. 

The functional currency of the Company is Indian National Rupee (INR). 
2. ognized at the rates of 

exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in 
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are 
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated. 

3. Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise except 
for; 

 Exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are 
included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign currency 
borrowings; 

 Exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is neither 
planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are recognized 
initially in other comprehensive income and reclassified from equity to statement of Profit and Loss on repayment of the 
monetary items. 

 
12. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS 
1. Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive), as a result of past events, and it 

is probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle such an obligation. 
2. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the 

balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured 
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows 
(when the effect of the time value of money is material). 

3. When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a 
receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that the reimbursement will be received and the amount of the 
receivable can be measured reliably. 

4. Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be 
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources 
will be required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made. Contingent liabilities and 
contingent assets are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. 

 

13. EARNING PER SHARE 
1. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 
during the year is adjusted for bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing shareholders, share split and reverse 
share split (consolidation of shares). 

2. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after tax attributable to equity shareholders as adjusted for 
dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity 
shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for driving basis earnings per share and the weighted 
average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares. 

 
14. BORROWING COSTS 
1. Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that 

necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are added to the cost of those assets, until such 
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All other borrowing costs are recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred. 

 
15. GOVERNMENT GRANTS AND SUBSIDIES 
1. Government grants are recognized by the company where there is reasonable assurance that the grants will be received and all 

the attached conditions will be complied with. Revenue grants are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same 
period, in which the related costs are incurred are accounted for. 

2. Government grants relating to Property, plant and equipment are recognized / presented as deferred income and released to the 
statement of Profit and Loss over the expected useful lives of the assets concerned. 

 
16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
1. A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another entity. 
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2. Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the 
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value 

 to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or 
financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss are recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. 

 
(a) Financial Assets 

Initial recognition and measurement. 
3. All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of 

financial assets (other than financial assets at fair value through statement of profit and loss at fair value through statement of 
tion cost directly 

attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss. 
 

Subsequent measurement 
4. For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 
 Debt instruments at amortized cost 
 Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI); 
 Debt instruments and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss(FVTPL); 
 Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). 

 
Debt instruments at amortized cost: 

5.  
 The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest on the principal amount outstanding, and 
 The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows 

 
6. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate 

(EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising 
from impairment are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables. 

 
Debt instrument at FVTOCI : 

7. ssified as FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met: 
 
 The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets, and 
  

 
8. Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. 

Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). 
 

Debt instrument at FVTPL : 
9. FVTPL is a residual category for debt instrument.  
10. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as 

FVTPL. Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

11. In addition, the company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, 
as FVTPL. However, such election is chosen only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition 

 
 

Derecognition of financial assets 
12. A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a company of similar financial assets) is primarily 

de-recognized when: 
 The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or 
 The company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received 

cash flows in full without material delay to a -  arrangement and either (a) the company has 
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the company has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset. 

13. When the company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through 
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither 
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the company 
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continues to involvement. In that case, the company 
also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on abasis that reflects the 
rights and obligations that the company has retained. 

(b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments 
 

Initial recognition and measurement 
14. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value plus transaction cost (if any) that is attributable to the acquisition of 

the financial liabilities which is also adjusted. 
 

Subsequent measurement 
15. The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below: 
 

Loans and borrowings 
16. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as 
well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the 
statement of profit and loss. 

 
Trade and other payables 

17. These amounts represent liabilities for goods or services provided to the company which are unpaid at the end of the reporting 
period. Trade and other payable are presented as current liabilities when the payment is due within a period of 12 months from 
the end of the reporting period. For all trade and other payables classified as current, the carrying amounts approximate fair 
value due to the short maturity of these instruments. Other payables filling due after 12 months from the end of the reporting 
period are presented as non-current liabilities and are measured at amortised cost unless designated as fair value through profit 
and loss at the inception. 

 
Other financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: 

18. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gain or losses on liabilities held for trading or 
designated as at FVTPL are recognized in the profit or loss. 

 
De-recognition of financial liabilities: 

19. A financial liability is de-recognition when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an 
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original 
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement 
of profit or loss. 

 
Offsetting 

20. Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 
Impairment of financial assets 

21. The company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 
109 requires expected credit losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The company recognized lifetime expected losses 
for all contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, 
expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losses or at an amount equal to the life 
time expected credit losses, if the credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition. 

 
17. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT 
1. The company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be 

received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either: 

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability 
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2. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the company.
3. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 

asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. 
4. A fair value measurement of a non-

benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its 
highest and best use. 

5. The company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

6. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair 
value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a 
whole: 

 Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; 
 Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or 

indirectly observable, or 
 Level3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable. 

7. For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the company determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. 

 
18. CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS 
1. Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balance (with an original 

maturity of twelvemonths or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into 
known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 
19. SEGMENT 
1. Operating segments are reported in a manner consists with the internal reporting provided to the management of the company. 
 

Identification of segments 
2.

es are organize and managed separately according to the nature of products, with each segments 
representing a strategic business unit that offers different products and serves different markets. The analysis of the 
geographical segments is based on the areas in which major operating divisions of the Company operate. 

 
Intersegment transfers 

3. The company accounts for intersegment sales on the basis of price charged for inter segment transfers. 
 

Allocation of common cost 
4. Common allocable costs are allocated to each segment according to the relevant contribution of each segment to the total 

common cost. 
 

Unallocated items 
5. Unallocated items include general corporate income and expenses items which are not allocated to any business segment. 
 

Segment accounting policies 
6. The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and 

presenting the financial statement of the Company as a whole. 
 
20. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY AND CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 
1. In the course of applying the policies outlined in all notes under section 2 above, the company is required to make judgment, 

estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factor that are considered to be relevant. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

2. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized 
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future 
period, if the revision affects current and future period. 

 
Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 

3. Management reviews the useful lives of property, plant and equipment at Least once a year. Such lives are dependent upon an 
assessment of both the technical lives of the assets and also their likely economic lives based on various internal and external 
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factors including relative efficiency and operating costs. Accordingly depreciable lives are reviewed annually using the best 
information available to the Management.

 
Provisions and liabilities

4. Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow of funds 
resulting from past operations or events that can reasonably be estimated. The timing of recognition requires application of 
judgement to existing facts and circumstances which may be subject to change. The amounts are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks 
specific to the liability. 

 
Contingencies 

5. In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and other claims against the company. 
Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify reliably are treated as 
contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognized. 

 
Fair value measurements 

6. When the fair values of financial assets or financial liabilities recorded or disclosed in the financial statements cannot be 
measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF 
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of 
judgment is required in establishing fair values. Judgments include consideration of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and 

 
 

Taxes 
7. Deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available 

against which the losses can be utilized. Significant management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax 
assets that can be recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax 
planning strategies. 

For J.C. Ranpura & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN: 108647W 

Place : Rajkot 
Date : 29.05.2022 

Sd/- 
Mehul J. Ranpura 
Partner 
Membership No. 128453 
UDIN: 22128453ANROYQ5258 
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5. Other intangible assets

Particulars
COMPUTER 
SOFTWARE  

Gross carrying amount   
Balance as at 01 April 2020                   9.91  
Additions, separately acquired                   0.20  
Adjustments during the year   
Disposals/assets written off   
Exchange loss on translating foreign operations   
Balance as at 31 March 2021                   10.11  
Additions, separately acquired                         -   
Adjustments during the year                           -   
Disposals/assets written off                          -   
Exchange loss on translating foreign operations   
Balance as at 31 March 2022                       10.11  
   

Accumulated depreciation   
Balance as at 01 April 2020                        5.23  
Charge for the year                          2.01  
Adjustments for disposals    
Exchange loss on translating foreign operations   
Balance as at 31 March 2021                          7.25  
Charge for the year                            0.89  
Adjustments for disposals                               -   
Exchange loss on translating foreign operations   
Balance as at 31 March 2022                        8.14  
   

Net book value as at 1 April 2020                            4.68  
Net book value as at 31 March 2021                             2.87  
Net book value as at 31 March 2022                       1.97  

6.    Investments accounted for using the equity method: 

Particulars 
Number of shares Amount 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
In equity instruments     
In equity shares (face value of Rs. 10 each) 0.61 0.61 8.26 9.19 

  8.26 9.19 
Less: Impairment   - - 
Less: Fair Value through OCI   (0.43) (0.93) 
Less: Loss share from joint ventures accounted through equity method   - - 

    
Sub total   8.69 8.26 

All equity shares, preference shares and debentures have face value Rs. 10 each unless otherwise stated. 
1 Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments and their Market Value of Rs. 0.95 Lakhs 
2.Aggregate amount of Unquoted Investments of Rs. 7.745 Lakhs 
3. Aggregate amount of impairment in value of Investments is Rs. Nil. 

7.   Other financial assets: 

Particulars 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Long-term Long-term Short-term Short-term 
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)     
Bank deposits for maturity more than 12 months - - - - 
Interest Accrued on deposits - - 1.00 1.28 
Electric Power Income Receivable of Windmill - - 12.35 8.43 
Advances to related parties - - - - 
Advances recoverable - - - - 
- considered good - - - - 
- considered doubtful - - - - 

- - 13.35 9.71 
Less: provision for doubtful receivables - - - - 

- - 13.35 9.71 
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8. Deferred tax

Particulars 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Amount Amount Amount Amount
Deferred Tax Liabilities on account of :     
Difference between Books & Tax Depreciation 82.78  82.28  
Others 14.59  20.87  

 97.37  103.15 
Deferred Tax Assets on Account of :     
Employees Benefits (5.58)  (6.41)  
Allowance for ECL for receivable (2.29)  (1.84)  
On account of Financial Assets (0.14)  (0.14)  
On account of Tangible and Other Assets (2.23)  (2.10)  

 (10.24)  (10.48) 
    
 87.13  92.67 

9.   Other assets 

Particulars 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Long-term Long-term Short-term Short-term 
(i) Capital advances - - - 1.29 
(ii) Advances other than capital advances: - - - - 
(a) Security deposits 29.44 34.56 - - 
(b) Advances to Related Parties - - - - 
(c) Other Advances     

Advances to suppliers - - 16.14 14.20 
Advance tax (Net of provisions) - - - - 
Advances to employees - - 7.25 8.23 
Prepaid expenses - - 13.81 24.14 
Balances with statutory authorities 154.22 130.44 121.03 71.47 
Export Incentives Receivables 36.76 31.69 - - 

220.42 196.68 158.23 119.34 
Less: provision for doubtful receivables - - - - 

220.42 196.68 158.23 119.34 

10. Inventories 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

(Valued at cost, unless otherwise stated) 172.17 114.28 
Raw material and components 335.47 265.47 
Work-in-progress 143.12 77.48 
Finished goods 64.50 57.06 
Stores and spares 3.28 0.64 
Fuel - - 

 718.54 514.92 

11. Current Investments: 

Particulars 
Number of units Amount 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
In mutual funds (quoted)     
SBI Credit Risk fund Reg growth 7.64 7.64 276.10 261.56 
SBI Liquid fund direct growth - 0.08 - 246.66 
SBI saving fund direct plan growth 15.19 18.22 540.10 623.09 

Sub total (A)   816.20 1,131.30 
    

In bonds (unquoted)     
Sub total (B)   - - 

In equity instruments (unquoted)     

Sub total (C)   - - 

TOTAL (A+B+C)   816.20 1131.30 
Aggregate amount of book value and market value of quoted investments   816.20 1,131.30 
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments   - - 

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments   - - 
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12. Trade receivables

Particulars Amount 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Secured: considered good - - 

Unsecured: considered good 823.80 660.26 
823.80 660.26 

Less: Provision for Doubtful Debt 8.24 6.60 
Total 815.56 653.66 

12.1 Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule: As on 31.03.2022 

Particulars 
Outstanding from following periods from due date of payment 

Total Less than 6 
months 

6 months - 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 

years 
(a) Undisputed trade receivables             

Considered good 820.77   2.22 0.36 0.28 0.16 823.80 
(b) Undisputed trade receivables             

Considered doubtful -   -   -   -   -   -   
(c) Undisputed trade receivables             

Credit Impaired             
(d) Disputed trade receivables             

Considered good  -   -   -   -   -   -   
(e) Disputed trade receivables             

Considered doubtful -   -   -   -   -   -   
(f) Disputed trade receivables             

Credit Impaired                     -                       -                       -                       -                       -   -   

12.2 Trade Receivables Ageing Schedule: As on 31.03.2021 

Particulars 
Outstanding from following periods from due date of payment 

Total Less than 6 
months 

6 months - 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 years 
More than 3 

years 
(a) Undisputed trade receivables             

Considered good 653.76   (4.03) 10.38 (0.06) 0.22 660.26 
(b) Undisputed trade receivables             

Considered doubtful -   -   -   -   -   -   
(c) Undisputed trade receivables             

Credit Impaired             
(d) Disputed trade receivables             

Considered good  -   -   -   -   -   -   
(e) Disputed trade receivables             

Considered doubtful -   -   -   -   -   -   
(f) Disputed trade receivables             

Credit Impaired                     -                       -                       -                       -                       -   -   

 
13.  Cash and bank balances 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Cash in hand    3.35 4.09 
Debit balance of cash credit accounts - - 
Balances with banks   
Current accounts 256.85 46.92 
Unpaid Dividend Accounts 3.23 3.09 
SBI Fixed Deposit 2.40 1.03 

 265.84 55.13 

14. Equity share capital 

 Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Authorised capital  

300.00 
 

300.00 30,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each 

300.00 300.00 
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital  

130.00 
 

130.00 13,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each fully paid up. 

            130.00                130.00 
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a) Shareholders holding more than 5 %  shares in the company.
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Indumati N. Vadgama 1,06,100 42,100
% holding 8.16% 3.24% 

b) No Change in Equity shares and Equity Share Capital during the financial years 2021-22 and 2020-21. 
c) The company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10/- per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.  The 

company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend where proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of the shareholders in the 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

d) For the period of five years immediately preceding the date of Balance Sheet, 
- The Company has not allotted any shares as fully paid up without receipt of cash, 
- The Company has not brought back any shares, 
- The Company has not issued any shares by way of bonus shares 

e) Details of Shareholding of Promoters : 
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 

Promoter Name No. of Shares % of total shares 
% change during 

the year 
[A] Shareholders Holding Equity Shares :    
Rajan R. Bambhania                58,700  4.52% - 
Jashumati R. Bambhania                53,000  4.08% - 
Ushaben P. Nadpara                43,400  3.34% - 
Indumati N. Vadgama             1,06,100  8.16% 4.92% 
Parshottambhai N. Nadpara                42,042  3.23% - 
Ruta R. Bambhania                40,800  3.14% - 
Siddharth Vaishnav and Diptiben S. Vaishnav                     675  0.05% - 
Bhavin N Vadgama HUF                36,600  2.82% - 
Pruthesh D. Patel                32,900  2.53% - 
Heena V. Patel                32,028  2.46% - 
Kokilaben D. Dand                32,031  2.46% - 
Jignesh S.Thanki                31,550  2.43% - 
Vishal D. Patel                29,826  2.29% - 
Alpa J Thanki                28,071  2.16% - 
Ramniklal N. Bambhania                27,480  2.11% - 
Narottam C. Vadgama HUF                27,000  2.08% - 
Dhirubhai H. Dand                26,490  2.04% - 
Pinak S Thanki                25,850  1.99% - 
Anila S. Thanki                48,080  3.70% - 
Purvi S. Thanki                22,900  1.76% - 
Rajan R. Bambhania HUF                19,300  1.48% - 
Ramniklal N. Bambhania HUF                18,900  1.45% - 
Vallabhbhai R. Vaishnav                17,000  1.31% - 
Falguni P. Thanki                16,100  1.24% - 
Pushpaben V. Vaishanv and Siddharth V. Vaishnav                15,300  1.18% - 
Twinkle Patel                14,600  1.12% - 
Jayendra C. Vadgama                13,400  1.03% - 
Dipti R. bambhania                13,000  1.00% - 
Hemali R. Bambhania                13,000  1.00% - 
Hiren N. Vadgama HUF                11,700  0.90% - 
Hiren N. Vadgama                10,440  0.80% - 
Dhirubhai H. Dand HUF                  8,986  0.69% - 
Mahesh M. Thanki                     147  0.01% - 
Vishal D. Patel HUF                     688  0.05% - 
Vallabhbhai R. Vaishnav and Pushpaben V. Vaishanv                56,375  4.34% - 
Siddharth Vaishnav                         -   0.00% - 
 9,74,459 74.96%  

15. Other equity 
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
As per last balance sheet 1,823.15  1,709.92  
 1,823.15  1,709.92  

Add : Net profit for the year 328.10  283.23  
Less : Appropriations     

Transfer to debenture redemption reserve -   -   
Transfer to general reserve -   40.00  
Equity dividend  130.00  130.00  
Tax on equity dividend -   -   
Preference dividend -   -   
Tax on preference dividend -   -   
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Amalgamation reserve and others - -
Ind AS adjustments -   -   
Depreciation adjustment - -
Capital redemption reserve -   -   
Gain on acount of disposal of interests -   -   
Loss on acount of purchase of DE Shaw instrument -   -   
Total appropriations 130.00  170.00  

Net surplus in statement of profit and loss 2,021.24  1,823.15  
     
Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)      
As per last Balance Sheet  67.83  13.68  
Add: Movement in OCI (Net) during the year  37.86  54.15  
 105.69  67.83  
     

Other reserve     
General reserve     
As per last balance sheet 749.78  709.78  
Add : Transferred from employee's stock options outstanding for lapsed options -     
Amount transferred from statement of profit and loss  -   40.00  
 749.78  749.78  
     

Securities premium account     
As per last balance sheet 100.00  100.00  
Add : Additions on ESOP exercised     
Add: Shares issued by the subsidiary companies      
Less: Reversal on dilution of a subsidiary **     
 100.00  100.00  
     

Total reserves  2,976.71  2,740.75  

16. Other non-current liabilities 

Particulars 
Long-term Long-term 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
(a) Advances  -    -   
(b) Others   

Provision for Decommissioning liability for asset (Windmill)  8.03   7.54  
Deferred income  -    -   
Long term Prepaid Income  -    -   

  8.03   7.54  

17A. Provisions 

Particulars 
Long-term Long-term 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
(a) Provision for other employee benefits   

Provision for leave encashment  -    -   
Provision for gratuity                    9.07                     9.58  

(b) Others   
Provision for contingency  -    -   
Provision for warranty  -    -   

                    9.07                     9.58  

Particulars 
Opening 
Balance 

Additions 
During the 

Year 

 Amount used 
during the 

Year  

 Amount 
Reversed 

during the 
Year  

 Adjustments 
due to changes 
in discounting 

Rate  

 Closing 
Balance  

Provision for leave encashment                   9.58                   0.51                         -                       9.07  
                   9.58                   -                     -                  0.51                         -                       9.07  

17B. Provisions 

Particulars 
Short-term Short-term 

31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
(a) Provision for other employee benefits   

Provision for gratuity                    3.53                     3.87  
Provision for Bonus                  55.20                   48.91  
Provision for leave encashment                    1.51                     1.24  
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(b) Others   
Provision for Audit Fees 3.10 -
Provision for warranty                         -                      0.08  
Provision for contingency                         -                      1.00  
Provision for tax                         -                          -   
Provision for others                     0.02                         -  

                  63.36                   55.10  

Particulars 
Opening 
Balance 

Additions 
During the 

Year 

 Amount used 
during the 

Year  

 Amount 
Reversed 

during the 
Year  

 Adjustments 
due to changes 
in discounting 

Rate  

 Closing 
Balance  

Provision for gratuity                    3.87              51.14                4.70              46.77                         -                       3.53  
Provision for Bonus                  48.91            209.65              48.88            154.48                         -                     55.20  
Provision for leave encashment                    1.24                0.27                   -                     -                           -                       1.51  
Provision for Audit Fees                        -                  3.10                   -                     -                           -                       3.10  
Provision for warranty                    0.08                   -                     -                  0.08                         -                           -    
Provision for contingency                    1.00                2.02                   -                  3.03                         -                           -    
Provision for others                        -                  0.10                   -                  0.08                         -                       0.02  
                 55.10            266.29              53.59            204.44                         -                     63.36  

18. Trade payables 

 Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Trade payables - acceptances                        -                          -   
Trade Payables dues to other than micro and small enterprises                200.23                  135.62  
Trade Payables dues to micro and small enterprises                        -                       7.13  
Trade payables - Other accrued liabilities                        -                          -   
Other current liabilities - Expenses payable                          -   
                200.23                  142.75  

18.1: Trade payable ageing schedule 
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

Total 
 

Less than 1 
year 

1-2 year 2-3- year 
More than 3 

year 
a) MSME                        -                           -                           -                           -                           -    
b) Others 199.70  0.52  0.00  0.01  200.23  
c) Disputed dues - MSME                        -                           -                           -                           -                           -    
d) Disputed dues - Others                        -                           -                           -                           -                           -    

  199.70  0.52  0.00  0.01  200.23  

 
19. Other financial liabilities 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Current maturities of long-term borrowings                        -                          -   
Current maturities of finance lease obligation                        -                          -   
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings                        -                          -   
Interest accrued and due on borrowings                        -                          -   
Security deposits                        -                          -   
Unpaid dividends*                    1.34                      1.29  
Unclaimed dividends*                    1.73                      1.73  
TDS and GST Payables                    1.68                      0.94  
Payable to related parties                        -                          -   
Employee related payables                        -                          -   
Retention money                        -                          -   
Matures/ Unclaimed Fixed Deposits and Interest thereon                        -                          -   
Margin money payable                        -                          -   
Other payables                  33.62                    33.84  
                  38.38                    37.81  

* Not due for Investor Education and Protection Fund 
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20. Other current liabilities

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
(a) Other Advances: 

Advances received                  23.63                      5.39  
(b) Others:     

Statutory dues                        -                          -   
Deferred revenue                        -                          -   
Deferred income                        -                          -   

                  23.63                      5.39  

21. Revenue from operations 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Operating revenue   

Revenue from export sales  2,439.13   1,714.26  
Revenue from domestic sales  1,570.77   1,158.30  
  4,009.90   2,872.56  

Other operating revenue   
Wind Electric Power Income            149.92          120.37  
Export Incentive                  -                   -   
Scrap Sale 10.63          -   
Others -         -   
           160.54            120.37  

       4,170.44       2,992.93  

22. Other income 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Income from current investments    

Dividend received* -                -   
           -                      -   

Interest from :     
Interest on Fixed Deposit 0.07            0.07  
Interest on PGVCL Deposit              1.11            1.38  
Interest Recd. On VAT Refund                   -               9.42  
Income-tax refunds                  -                   -   
Debentures                    -                    -   
Financial asset carried at amortised cost                   -                  -   
Others -                   -   
  1.19            10.86  

Other income     
Profit on disposal of fixed assets                   -                   -   
Duty Drawback Income A/c.             36.59           27.39  
MEIS License (Export Incentive)                  -            61.69  
Centex Department              0.00              0.00  
Gain on foreign currency transactions (net)            26.63              3.39  
Unwinding of Interest income on deposits              0.14             0.14  
Gain on fair valuation of financial assets          36.28            25.21  
Miscellaneous income              1.70             0.90  
          101.34          118.72  

         102.53           129.58  

23 (a). Cost of material consumed 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Opening Stock             114.28              141.66  
Add : Purchases           2,047.94           1,085.75  

Transportation Inward                     19.54                 11.02  
Cartage Inward                     0.12                  1.18  

          2,181.87             1,239.61  
Less:  Sales              135.58              32.07  
          2,046.29          1,207.53  
Less : Closing Stock 172.17                 114.28  
             1,874.12              1,093.26  
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23 (b). Purchase of traded goods

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Purchase of traded goods - -

      -                       -   

23 (c). Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock-in-trade and finished goods 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Opening stock     
Finished goods            77.48                   112.64  
Work-in-progress              265.47                   243.97  
               342.94                 356.61  
Closing stock     
Finished goods              143.12                    77.48  
Work-in-progress            335.47                 265.47  
             478.59                 342.94  
Total (increase)/decrease in inventories          (135.65)                13.66  

24. Employee benefit expense 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Salaries, wages and bonus            452.15               403.27  
Contribution to provident and other funds            34.91                 34.51  
Staff welfare                5.62                     4.86  
            492.68              442.65  

25. Finance costs 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Interest on   

 On long term loans                       -                     0.19  
 On cash credit & short-term loans                       -                         -   
 Others                   0.49                    0.49  

Guarantee, finance and bank charges                       -                         -   
Finance cost on security deposit                       -                         -   
                   0.49                    0.68  

Less: Transfer to construction work-in-progress                       -                         -   
Less: Transfer to capital work-in-progress                       -                         -   
                   0.49                    0.68  

26. Depreciation and amortisation 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Depreciation on     

Property, plant and equipment                 58.35                  63.68  
Investment properties                       -                         -   
Current assets                       -                         -   

Amortisation on                        -                         -   
Intangible assets                   0.89                    2.01  

                 59.24                  65.69  

27. Other expenses 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Manufacturing Expenses   

Stores & Spares consumed               323.61                247.98  
Packing materials consumed               101.44                100.39  
Other Manufacturing Expenses               497.31                302.13  
Power & Fuel               477.03                307.14  
Product Development Expenses                 20.47                  18.41  
Rent                       -     -    
Repairs and Maintenance - Machinery                 12.97                    7.69  
Repairs and Maintenance - Building                   4.32                    1.32  

            1,437.14                985.05  
Selling and Distribution Expenses     

VAT - Sales-tax                       -                     7.25  
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Transport Outward                 20.09                  14.54  
Sales Promotion Expenses 0.38 0.01 
Clearing & Forwarding Exp. 12.92 9.43 

                 33.39                  31.24  
Establishment Expenses     

Insurance                   4.07                    4.04  
Rates and Taxes                   5.78                    3.21  
Communication                   1.24                    1.08  
Travelling Expenses                   2.25                    0.11  
Repairs and Maintenance - Others                 11.84                    8.88  
Service Tax                        -                         -   
Provision for Expected Credit Loss                    1.64                    0.20  
Payment to Auditors (For statutory audit)                   4.80                    2.40  
Donation                   1.35                  26.32  
Other Misc. Expenses                 56.71                  55.24  

                89.67                101.48  
     

            1,560.20             1,117.76  

28. OCI schedule 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Other Comprehensive Income   

  (A) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss   
(i) Re-measurement gains (losses) on defined benefit plans Income tax effect 44.78 10.05 
Income tax effect - - 
(ii) Net (loss)/gain on FVTOCI equity securities  7.67 64.98 
Income tax effect - - 
 52.45 75.02 

(B) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss - - 
 52.45 75.02 

29. Earnings per equity share 

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders   
Profit after tax 328.10 283.23 

328.10 283.23 
Nominal value of equity shares 130.00 130.00 
Weighted-average number of equity shares for basic EPS 13.00 13.00 
Basic earnings per share (in Rs.) 25.24 21.79 

  
Nominal value of equity shares 130.00 130.00 
Add: Employee stock option plan - - 
Weighted-average number of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 13.00 13.00 
Diluted earnings per share (in Rs.) 25.24 21.79 

30. CIF Value of Imports 

Particulars 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Amount Amount 
Raw Materials                       -                         -   
Spare Parts                 13.58   15.82 
Capital Goods                       -                         -   

31. Expenditure in Foreign Currency 

Particulars 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Amount Amount 
In respect of:   
Travelling Expenses                       -                         -   
Participation Fees                       -                         -   

32. Earning in Foreign Exchange ( calculated on F.O.B. value ) 

Particulars 
31 March 2022 31 March 2021 

Amount Amount 
Export of Goods (including Tool Development Charges income Rs.  1301966.84/- (Previous Year Rs. 10,96,263/-). 2,418.82 1,701.22 
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33. Value of raw materials and components consumed

Particulars
2021-22 2020-21 

% of total 
consumption

Value
% of total 

consumption
Value

Imported at landed cost 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Indigenously obtained 100.00 1,874.12 100.00 1,093.26 

100.00 1,874.12 100.00 1,093.26 

34. The stores and spares consumed 

Particulars 
2021-22 2020-21 

% of total 
consumption 

Value 
% of total 

consumption 
Value 

Imported at landed cost 3.94 13.58 5.41 15.82 
Indigenously obtained 96.06 131.05 94.59 276.70 

100.00 344.63 100.00 292.52 

35. Details of segment reporting 
The company has identified two reportable Segments viz. Investment Castings and Power. 

(1) Primary Segment: 
 

Particulars 
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 

Investment 
Castings 

Investment 
Castings 

Power Power Total Total 

1. SEGMENT REVENUE  4,020.52   2,872.56   149.92   120.37   4,170.44   2,992.93  
Other Unallocated Revenue  -    -    -    -    37.46   36.08  
Total  4,020.52   2,872.56   149.92   120.37   4,207.90   3,029.01  
Less: Inter Segment Revenue  -    -    148.06   119.82   148.06   119.82  
Net Income from Operation  4,020.52   2,872.56   1.86   0.55   4,059.84   2,909.19  

2. SEGMENT RESULTS PROFIT / 
(LOSS) BEFORE INTEREST & 
TAX  336.51   326.58   85.37   62.22   421.87   388.81  

Less: Interest - - - -  0.49   0.68  
Other unallocated Expenses - - - - - - 

TOTAL PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE 
TAX  336.51   326.58   85.37   62.22   421.39   388.13  

3. CAPITAL EMPLOYED (SEGMENT 
ASSETS-SEGMENT LIABILITIES)       

Segment Assets  2,476.09   1,809.79   349.51   377.33   2,825.60   2,187.12  
Add:  Common assets - - - -  824.89   1,139.57  

TOTAL ASSETS  2,476.09   1,809.79   349.51   377.33   3,650.49   3,326.69  
Segment Liabilities   533.54   445.88   10.25   10.06   543.78   455.93  
Add:  Common Liabilities - - - -  87.13   92.67  

TOTAL LIABILITIES   533.54   445.88   10.25   10.06   630.92   548.60  
SEGMENT CAPITAL EMPLOYED   1,942.55   1,363.91   339.27   367.27   3,019.58   2,778.08  

(2) Geographical Segments: 
(a) The following table shows the distribution of the company's sales by geographical market: 

  Revenue 2021-22 2020-21 

  Within India         1,731.31              1,279.07 
  Overseas         2,439.13              1,713.86 
  Total:         4,170.44              2,992.93 

(b) Assets base on geographical location: 

Particulars 
Carrying Amount of Segment 

assets 
Addition to Fixed Assets and 

Intangible Assets 
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 

Within India  3,122.20   2,951.71   55.22   31.53  
Overseas  528.30   374.97   -    -   

 3,650.49   3,326.69   55.22   31.53  

36. Employees Benefits 
Disclosures in respect of Defined Contribution Plan, recognised as expenses for the year. 
  2021-22 2020-21 
  Employer's contribution to Provident Fund (includes pension fund) 30.26  30.56 
  Employer's contribution to E. S. I. 4.65  5.95 
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Disclosure in respect of Defined Benefit Plans in respect of Gratuity.
The present value of obligation and defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation report.

The Company has funded the gratuity liability ascertained on actuarial basis, wherein every employee who has completed five years or more of service is entitled 
to gratuity on retirement or resignation or death calculated at 15 days salary for each completed year of service, subject to maximum of Rs. 20 lakhs per 
employee.  The vesting period for gratuity as payable under the Payment of Gratuity Act is 5 years. 

Valuations are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions which may vary over time. Thus, the company is exposed to various risks in 
providing the above benefit which are as follows:   

Interest Rate risk:  The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest risk.  A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of 
providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (as shown in financial statements). 

Liquidity Risk:   This is the risk that the Company is not able to meet the short term gratuity payouts. This may arise due to nonavailability of enough cash / 
cash equivalent to meet the liabilities or holding of illiquid assets not being sold in time. 

Salary Escalation Risk:   The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan participants in future.  
Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to determine the present value of obligation will 
have a bearing on the plan's liability. 

Demographic Risk:  The company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to the risk of actual 
experience turning out to be worse compared to. 

Regulatory Risk:  Gratuity benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 (as amended from time to time). There is a 
risk of change in regulation requiring higher gratuity payouts (e.g. increase in the maximum limit on gratuity of Rs. 20,00,000). 

Asset Liability mismatching or Market Risk:   The duration of the liability is longer compared to duration of assets, exposing the Company to market risk for 
volatilities / fall in interest rate. 

Investment Risk:  The probability or likelihood of occurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment. 

  
Gratuity 

2021-22 2020-21 
  Present Value of obligation (Total Funded & Unfunded) 271.12  265.84 
  Fair value of plan assets 267.59 261.98 
  Unrecognised past service cost 0.00 0.00 
  Net liability in the Balance Sheet    - (Un -funded) 3.53  3.86 

  Changes in the present value of Obligation 2021-22 2020-21 
  Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 265.84 271.45 
  Current Service cost  12.22 12.47 
  Interest Expenses or Cost 18.08 4.41 
  Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)/ Loss   arising from   0.00 0.00 
       Change in financial assumption (6.14) (6.22) 
       Experience variance (i.e. actual expenses vs assumption) (3.05) 0.00 
  Past service cost 0.00 0.00 
  Benefits Paid (15.81) (16.27) 
  Present Value of Obligation as at the end 271.12 265.84 

  Expenses recognised in Income Statement 2021-22 2020-21 
  Current Service cost 12.22 12.47 
  Net Interest Cost  0.64 0.21 
  Past service cost 0.00 0.00 
  Losses (gains) on curtailment and settlements 0.00 0.00 
  Expenses recognised in Income Statement  12.86 12.68 

  Other Comprehensive Income 2021-22 2020-21 
  Actuarial (gains) / Losses (9.21) (22.49) 
  Return on plan assets, excluding amount recognised in net interest expenses 0.70 0.63 
  Component of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (8.50) (21.86) 

  Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date 2021-22 2020-21 
  Discount rate per annum 6.50% 6.80% 
  Salary Escalation per Annum 7.00% 7.00% 
  Retirement Age 60 Years 60 Years 
  Mortality Rate (as % of IALM 2006-08) 100.00% 100.00% 
  Attrition / Withdrawal Rates  5% to 1% 5% to 1% 
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Sensitivity Analysis
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity 
analysis below has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other 
assumptions constant.  The result of Sensitivity analysis is given below: 

31/03/2022 31/03/2021 
Defined Benefit Obligation (base) 271.12 265.84 

Particulars 
31/03/2022 31/03/2021 

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase 
Discount Rate ( - / +1 % ) 253.50 288.75 248.56 283.12 
Salary Growth Rate ( - / +1 % ) 290.10 252.14 284.45 247.23 

Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the 
change in assumption would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. 

There is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period. 

37. Related Parties disclosures 

(1) Names of Related parties and nature of relationships. 
(a) Directors 

(i) Shri Dhirubhai H. Dand   (ii) Shri Hiren N. Vadgama   (iii) Shri Jignesh S. Thanki 
 

(b) Key Managerial Personnel 
(i) Shri Rajan R. Bambhania, MD   (ii) Shri Sidharth  V. Vaishnav, WTD   (iii) Shri Ashok  L. Shekhat, CFO and (iv) Ms. Ekta H. Bhimani, CS 
 

(c) Relatives of Director / Key Managerial Personnel 
(i) Smt.  Kokilaben D. Dand   (ii) Smt.  Heena V. Patel   (iii) Smt.  Dipti S. Vaishnav   (iv) Shri Vishal D. Patel and (v) Dhirubhai Dand & Co. 
 

(d) Enterprises where control of Key Management Personnel and/or their relatives exists. 
(i)  Specmac Techno Private Limited 

 
Note: Related party relationship is as identified by the company and relied upon by the auditors. 

 
(2) Transaction with Related Parties. 

Particulars 
Related Parties 

Referred in 1(b) above Referred in 1(c) above Referred in 1(d) above 
2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 2021-22 2020-21 

Expenses       
(1) Remuneration 53.25 27.79 - - - - 
(2) Salary, Wages & Bonus - - 51.77 46.21 - - 
(3) Legal & Professional fee - - - 4.75 - - 
(4) Jobwork - - - - 193.77 18.13 

Outstanding       
Payable - 2.50 - - - - 
Receivable - - - - - - 

Note: No transactions were carried out with Directors mentioned at (a) above. 

38. Financial Instruments 

(A) Financial Instruments by category 

Particulars 
As at 31/03/2022 As at31/03/2021 

Carrying 
Value 

Fair Value 
Carrying 

Value 
Fair Value 

Financial assets       
Measured at amortised cost (A)     

Other financial assets  13.35   13.35   9.71   9.71  
Trade Receivables  815.56   815.56   653.66   653.66  
Cash and cash equivalents  265.84   265.84   55.13   55.13  

Total financial assets at  amortised cost (A)  1,094.75   1,094.75   718.49   718.49  
Measured at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (B)     

Non-Current Investments  8.26   8.69   9.19   8.26  
Current Investments  816.20   816.20   1,054.01   1,131.30  

Total financial assets at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (B)  824.46   824.89   1,063.20   1,139.57  
Measured at fair value through Profit and Loss (C) - - - - 

    
Total Financial assets ( A + B + C )  1,919.21   1,919.64   1,781.69   1,858.06  
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Financial liabilities
Long term Borrowings - - - - 
Short term Borrowings - - - -
Trade Payables  200.23   200.23   142.75   142.75  
Other financial liabilities  38.38   38.38   38.89   38.89  

    
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost  238.61   238.61   181.64   181.64  

(B) Financial Risk Management 
 

The Company has not established separate risk management policies, but laid down procedure to ensure timely identification and evaluation of risks, settings 
acceptable risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls against these risks, monitor the risks and their limits, improve risk awareness and transparency.  The 
Company's activities expose it to credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. 

Risk  Exposure arising from  Measurement Management  

Credit Risk  
Cash and cash equivalents, financial 
assets and trade receivables 

Credit ratings / Aging analysis 

Diversification of counter parties, 
investment limits, check on counter 
parties basis credit rating and number 
of overdue days. 

Liquidity Risk  Other Liabilities  Maturity analysis 
Maintaining sufficient cash / cash 
equivalents.  

Market Risk  Financial assets and liabilities  Sensitivity analysis 
Constant evaluation and proper risk 
management policies.  

The Board provides guiding principles for overall risk management as well as   policies covering specific are as such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk and 
investment of surplus liquidity. 

(a)  Credit risk 
Credit risk refers to the risk of a counter party default on its contractual obligation resulting into a financial loss to the Company.  The maximum exposure of the 
Financial assets represents trade receivables, work in progress and other receivables.  In respect of trade receivables, the Company used a provision matrix to 
compute the expected credit loss allowances for trade receivables in accordance with the expected credit loss (ECL) policy of the Company.  The Company 
regularly reviews trade receivables and necessary provisions, wherever required are made in the financial statements. 

(b) Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is that the Company will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet its commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may 
result from an inability to sell as financial asset quickly at close to its fair value. 

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and by 
matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities. Contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities are as follows: 

Particulars 
Less  than   1 

year 
More than 1  

year 
Total 

As on 31st March, 2022    
Borrowings   -    -    -   
Trade payables   -    -    -   
Other Financial Liabilities   38.38   -    38.38  

   
As on 31st March, 2021    
Borrowings   -    -    -   
Trade payables  7.13   -    7.13  
Other Financial Liabilities  38.89    38.89  

(c) Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will   fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Such changes in the 
values of financial instruments may result from changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes. 

The Company   is earning   in foreign   currency   and consequently, the company is exposed to foreign exchange risk. The Company evaluates exchange rate 
exposure arising from foreign currency transactions and follows established risk management policies. 

(d) Capital management 
The Company's capital management objective is to maximize the total shareholders' return by optimising cost of capital through flexible capital structure that 
supports growth.  Further, the Company ensure optimal credit risk profile to maintain / enhance credit rating. 

The Company determined the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operating plan and long term strategic plans. The funding requirements are met 
through internal accruals and long term / short term borrowings. 

The Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of net debt to equity ratio and maturity profile of the overall debt portfolio of the Company. 

The following table summarises the capital of the Company. 
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  Particulars As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 
Equity* 3,106.71 2,870.75 

  Long Term Debt  -     -    
3,106.71 2,870.75 

  Tangible and other assets  633.67   637.69  
  Working Capital  2,348.16   2,137.90  
  Others assets /(Liabilities) (Net)  124.88   95.16  
  3,106.71   2,870.75  
*  Equity includes capital and all reserves of the Company that are managed as capital.   

(e) Dividend 
  Dividend recognised in the financial statements As at 31/03/2022 As at 31/03/2021 

The Board of Directors have recommended the payment of Final dividend of Rs. 10.00 per equity share for the 
financial year 2020-21. The proposed dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing general 
meeting. 

 

130.00 
The Board of Directors have recommended the payment of Final dividend of Rs. 10.00 per equity share for the 
financial year 2021-22. The proposed dividend is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing general 
meeting. 130.00 

 

39. In the opinion of the Board of Directors, Current assets and other non current assets   have a value on realisation in ordinary course of business at least equal to 
the amount at which they are stated. 

40. Confirmation of debit / credit balances have not been received and hence these balances are subject to adjustment, if any. 

41. Previous year figures : 
The company has regrouped / rearranged previous year figures whenever necessary   in view of easy comparison with current year figures.   

42. Additional Regulatory Information for the year ended 31 March 2022 
(i) Title Deed of Immovable Properties not held in the name of the Company: As per Annexure-I 
(ii) The Company has not Classified any Property as Investment Property. 
(iii) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipments. 
(iv) The Company has not revalued its Intangible Assets. 
(v) Disclosures relating to Loans and Advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties: 

(a)   repayable on demand 
(b)   without specifying any terms or period of repayment 

Type of Borrower 
Amount of loan or 

advance in the nature of 
loan outstanding 

Percentage to the total 
Loans or Advances in the 
nature of loan outstanding 

1 Promoters - - - - 
2 Directors - - - - 
3 KMPs. 0.80 - - - 
4 Related Parties - - - - 

(vi) Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP) : 

(a) CWIP ageing schedule 

CWIP 
Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Total Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 year 
More than 

3 years 
Projects in progress - - - - - 
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - - 

(b) Details of CWIP overdue or costs of which exceeded its original plan 

CWIP 
To be completed in 

Total Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 year 
More than 

3 years 
Projects 1 - - - - - 
Projects 2 - - - - - 

(vii) Intangible assets under development : 

(a) Ageing schedule of intangible assets under development 

CWIP 
Amount in CWIP for a period of 

Total Less than 1 
year 

1-2 years 2-3 year 
More than 

3 years 
Projects in progress - - - - - 
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - - 

(b) Details of CWIP of intangible assets overdue or costs of which exceeded its original plan 

CWIP 
To be completed in 

Total 
Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 year More than 
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year 3 years
Projects 1 - - - - - 
Projects 2 - - - - -

(viii) Details of Benami Property held: 
No proceedings are initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and the 
rule made thereunder. 

(ix) The Company does not have any borrowings from banks or Financial Institutes. 

(x) Willful Defaulter: 
The board of directors of the Company is of the opinion that the Company has, till the date of signing of this financial statement, not been declared as willful 
defaulter by its banks or financial institution. 

(xi) Relationship with Struck off Companies. 
On the basis of confirmation with the parties, the board of directors of the Company is of the opinion that the Company did not have any transactions with 
companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013. 

(xii) Details of Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies yet to be registered. 
No charges or its satisfaction is yet to be registered with Registrar of Companies. 

(xiii) Compliance with number of layers of companies. 

(xiv) Disclosures of Ratios : As per Annexure-II 

(xv) Compliance with approved Scheme(s) of Arrangements: 
The Company has not made any Scheme of Arrangements with competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of Companies Act, 2013. 

(xvi) Utilisation of Borrowed Funds and Share Premium : 
(a) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) or has not 

provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate beneficiaries. 
(b) The Company has not received any funds or not entered into any understanding that company invest or land the said amount for the benefits of Funding 

Party directly or indirectly or the company has not provided any guarantee on behalf of Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

Annexure-I 
 

Relevant line item in the balance 
sheet 

Description 
of item of 
property 

Gross 
Carrying 

value 

Title deeds 
held in the 

name of 

Whether title 
deed holder is a 

promotor, 
director or 
relative of 

promotor/director 
or employee of 
promotor or 

director 

Property 
held since 
which date 

Reason for 
not held in 
the name of 
the company 

(1) PPE - - - - - - 
(2) Investment Property - - - - - - 
(3) PPE retired from active use and 
held for disposal - - - - - - 
(4) Others - - - - - - 
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Annexure-II
 

Ratios 
Numerators  

Current period 
[Previous period] 

Denominators 
Current period 

[Previous period] 

Current 
Period

Previous 
Period

% Variance 
Reason for 
Variance 

(a) Current Ratio  2,787.72   439.55   6.34   7.18   -11.62  N.A. 
 (2,484.05)  (346.15)     

(b) Debt-Equity Ratio  -    -    -    -    -   N.A 
 -    -    -    -    -    

(c) Debt-Service Coverage Ratio  389.47   1.05   370.45   514.56   -28.01  See 1 
 (349.80)  (0.68)  -    -    -    

(d) Return on Equity Ratio  328.10   2,988.73   0.11   0.10   7.25  N.A. 
 (283.23)  (2,767.06)  -    -    -    

(e) Inventory Turnover Ratio  4,009.90   616.73   6.50   5.45   19.32  N.A. 
 (2,872.56)  (527.17)  -    -    -    

(f) Trade Receivables Turnover Ratio  4,170.44   734.61   5.68   4.65   22.09  N.A. 
 (2,992.93)  (643.65)  -    -    -    

(g) Trade Payables Turnover Ratio  2,047.94   171.49   11.94   4.71   153.65  See 2 
 (1,085.75)  (230.61)  -    -    -    

(h) Net Capital Turnover Ratio  4,170.44   2,348.16   1.78   1.40   26.87  See 3 
 (2,992.93)  (2,137.90)  -    -    -    

(i) Net Profit Ratio  328.10   4,170.44   0.08   0.09   -16.86  N.A. 
 (283.23)  (2,992.93)  -    -    -    

(j) Return on Capital employed  422.36   3,193.84   0.13   0.13   0.62  N.A. 
 (389.49)  (2,963.42)  -    -    -    

(k) Return on investments  (314.68)  1,139.57   (0.28)  0.21   -232.25  See 4 
 (196.84)  (942.73)  -    -    -    

1) During FY 2021-22 Net Profit has increased in comparison with FY 2020-21 and Lease Payment has also increased in 
comparison with FY 2020-21 and therefore the ratio has decreased in FY 2021-22. 

2) Due to increase in credit purchase and decrease in Average Trade Payable the ratio has decreased in comparison with FY 
2020-21. 

3) During FY 2021-22 net sales has increased and there for the Ratio has increased in comparison with FY 2020-21. 

4) Due to decrease in Investment in FY 2021-22 in comparison with FY 2020-21 the ratio has decreased. 

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
For J C Ranpura & Co. Sd/-  Sd/- 
Firm Registration No. 108647W Dhirubhai H. Dand  Rajan R. Bambhania 
Chartered Accountants Chairman Sd/- Managing Director 
Sd/- DIN: 00284065 Siddharth V.  Vaishnav DIN: 00146211 
Mehul J. Ranpura  Executive Director  
Partner Sd/- DIN: 00169472 Sd/- 
M. No.128453 Ekta H. Bhimani  Ashok L. Shekhat 
UDIN: 22128453ANROYQ5258 Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer 

   
Place:  Rajkot Place:  Junagadh   
Date:   29.05.2022 Date:   28.05.2022   
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37TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING ON MONDAY, SEPTEMBER 26, 2022 AT 11:00 A.M. 
at 102, GIDC-II, Rajkot Road, Dolatpara, Junagadh 

 

Folio No. ________________________ DP ID No. ______________________________ Client ID No. _____________________________ 

Name of the Member__________________________________________________________ Signature:_____________________________ 

Name of the Proxyholder_______________________________________________________ Signature:_____________________________ 

1.Only Member/Proxyholder can attend the Meeting. 
2. Member/Proxyholder should bring his/her copy of the Annual Report for reference at the Meeting. 

 

Creative Castings Limited  
102, GIDC-II, Rajkot Road, Dolatpara, Junagadh, Phone: 0285-2660040 / 2660224 
Fax: +91-285-2661348, e-Mail : info@creative-cast.com, Web: www.creative-cast.com 

 

PROXY FORM 
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of the Member(s) :_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Registered address : ____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________ E-mail Id : _______________________________________________ 

Folio No. / Client ID No. : _______________________________  DP ID No. _______________________________________________ 

I / We, being the member(s) of ___________________ Shares of Creative Castings Limited, hereby appoint  

1. Name:_______________________________________________ E-mail Id: ________________________________________________ 

Address: _____________________________________________ 

_____________________________________________________ Signature: _________________________________ or failing him/her 

2. Name:_______________________________________________ E-mail Id: ________________________________________________ 
Address: _____________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________ Signature: _________________________________ or failing him/her 

3. Name:_______________________________________________ E-mail Id: ________________________________________________ 
Address: _____________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________ Signature: _________________________________ or failing him/her 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the thirty-seventh Annual General Meeting of the Company 
to be held on Monday, September 26, 2022 at 11:00 a.m. at 102, GIDC-II, Rajkot Road, Dolatpara, Junagadh and at any adjournment thereof 
in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

Ordinary Businesses: 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended at March 31, 2022, together 

with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon; 
2. To declare a final dividend of Rs. 10.00 (Rupees Ten only) (i.e. 100%) per equity share, for the financial year ended on March 31, 2022; 
3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Hiren Narottam Vadgama (DIN: 00145992), who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers himself 

for reappointment; 

22 

Signature of shareholder............................................................. Signature of Proxyholder(s)......................... ....................................................... 

NOTES:  
1. This Form in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at 102, GIDC-II, Rajkot 

Road, Dolatpara, Junagadh, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
2. Those Members who have multiple folios with different joint holders may use copies of this Attendance slip/Proxy. 
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1 
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